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NIPPONKOA Insurance Co., Ltd. was established in April 

2001 through a merger of The Nippon Fire & Marine 

Insurance Co., Ltd. (founded in 1892) and The Koa Fire & 

Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. (founded in 1918). Japan’s third-

oldest non-life insurance provider, the Company commands 

more than 9% of Japan’s non-life insurance market, which 

ranks as one of the largest in the world, together with those 

of United States, Germany, and England.

 In line with its fundamental philosophy of enhanc-

ing customer satisfaction, the Company, which is not af-

filiated with any financial group, has developed opera-

tions involving a wide range of customers—beyond the 

keiretsu (corporate group framework)—and established 

numerous strategic business alliances. NIPPONKOA’s strength 

lies in its powerful sales network of highly capable profes-

sional sales agents and its extensive close ties with fi nancial 

institutions, including nationwide and regional banks. At the 

same time, it has distinguished itself as a creative force in 

the industry by developing new products that refl ect a solid 

understanding of changing lifestyles and customer needs.

 Making full use of these unique features and competitive 

advantages, the Company will strive to deepen the trust of 

customers and meet the expectations of shareholders by ex-

panding its operations and improving profi tability. It will at 

the same time step up activities aimed at fulfi lling its corpo-

rate social responsibilities in terms of compliance, environ-

mental issues and other matters, and by actively disclosing 

corporate information.
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Credit Ratings

NIPPONKOA has received the following ratings from credit rating 

agencies (as of June 30, 2009):

Standard & Poor’s A+

Rating and Investment Information (R&I)     A+

Japan Credit Rating Agency (JCR) AAp

A.M. Best A

Corporate Philosophy

With an independent spirit, guided by its liberal 

corporate culture, the NIPPONKOA Insurance 

Group will contribute to the development of an 

affl uent and healthy society, through unremitting 

effort and innovative ideas that transform old 

ways of thinking.

Guiding Principles

1.  We make our customers the starting point of all 

our corporate activities, thereby earning their 

full trust.

2.  We work all-out to boost corporate value 

and promote disclosure, thereby meeting the 

expectations of our shareholders.

3.  Guided by a high standard of corporate ethics, 

we promote sincere, fair and environmentally 

friendly corporate activities. 

4.  We foster a vigorous corporate setting in which 

individuals feel free to express their opinions 

and put them into practice.

5.  Working together with our agents, we pro-

vide our customers with the highest level of 

comfort and satisfaction.
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Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars*1

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2009

Operating income ¥   933,786 ¥   966,620 ¥   992,409 ¥   961,233 ¥1,047,293 $  9,506,127 
Net premiums written for non-life insurance 663,888 698,685 712,862 717,727 728,421 6,758,507 
Life insurance premiums 63,568 64,158 61,946 61,048 58,124 647,141 
Ordinary profit (loss) (3,043) 17,742 28,130 24,486 21,634 (30,978)
Net income (loss) 9,971 8,991 15,872 10,670 13,467 101,507 
Net income (loss) per share (in yen and U.S. dollars):

 Basic 13.15 11.63 19.81 13.08 16.35 0.133 
 Diluted 13.13 11.62 19.79 13.07 16.35 0.133 
Total assets 3,089,523 3,323,190 3,700,381 3,759,621 3,422,186 31,451,938 
Total net assets*2 345,467 543,198 767,024 791,328 582,408 3,516,921 
Equity ratio 11.2% 16.3% 20.7% 21.0% 17.0%

Return on equity (ROE) 2.2% 1.4% 2.0% 1.6% 2.3%

Net cash provided by (used in):

 Operating activities (76,723) (41,223) (13,286) 3,864 (22,283) (781,055)
 Investing activities 119,271 63,135 36,710 22,052 23,836 1,214,205 
 Financing activities (12,548) (43,932) (13,268) (15,800) (12,987) (127,750)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 168,525 140,825 163,661 152,733 141,861 1,715,625 

*1: U.S. dollar amounts are translated from yen at the rate of 98.23 = US$1, the approximate rate prevailing at March 31, 2009.
*2:  As a result of the adoption of a new accounting standard for presentation of net assets, minority interests, subscription rights to shares and net deferred gains on hedge 

accounting are included in total net assets from the year ended March 31, 2007.

Millions of Yen

(Nonconsolidated basis) 2009 2008 2007

Excluding CALI (compulsory 

automobile liability insurance)

Net premiums written ¥572,461 ¥586,116 ¥599,635 

Loss ratio 62.4% 63.1% 63.1%

Expense ratio 36.6% 37.8% 38.3%

Underwriting balance 5,414 (5,439) (8,538)

Note:  Insurance rates for compulsory automobile liability insurance (CALI) were lowered significantly in April 2008, so the above chart was prepared to permit a comparison of 
financial results over the last three years excluding the effects of this change. CALI operates on a “no loss, no profit” basis, so the reduction in CALI premiums does not 
impact underwriting profit.
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Billions of Yen

Operating income

Billions of Yen

Net premiums written 
for non-life insurance

Billions of Yen

Ordinary profit (loss)

Billions of Yen

Net income (loss)

Billions of Yen

Total assets

Billions of Yen

Total net assets

CONSOLIDATED Financial Highlights
NIPPONKOA INSURANCE CO., LTD. and consolidated subsidiaries Years ended March 31

(Reference) Financial Results Excluding Compulsory Automobile Insurance
Years ended March 31
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Overview of Fiscal 2008

Conditions surrounding the non-life insurance industry 

remained severe in fi scal 2008 as corporate earnings 

plunged due to the contraction in the global economy. 

Our mainstay automobile insurance business in Japan 

was severely impacted by the introduction of lower rates 

for compulsory automobile liability insurance, and by a 

sharp drop in new car sales. 

 Net premiums written in fi scal 2008 (ended March 

31, 2009) totaled ¥653.4 billion, a decline of ¥35.4 bil-

lion compared with the previous fi scal year. (All fi gures 

in this section are for NIPPONKOA on a nonconsolidated 

basis.) If we exclude compulsory automobile liability in-

surance, which was affected by the mandated reduction 

in premium rates, net premiums written fell ¥13.6 billion 

year on year. On the other hand, our loss ratio (excluding 

compulsory automobile liability insurance) improved 

0.7 percentage point year on year, to 62.4%. 

 Our net expense ratio (excluding compulsory auto-

mobile liability insurance) fell to 36.6% in fi scal 2008 

(down 1.2 percentage points), and our underwriting 

balance (excluding compulsory automobile liability 

insurance) was in the black, showing an underwriting 

profi t of ¥5.4 billion, an increase of ¥10.8 billion com-

pared with the previous fi scal year. However, returns 

from asset management were down sharply, and as a 

result ordinary profi t fell ¥19.6 billion year on year, for 

an ordinary loss of ¥2.8 billion. Nearly all of this loss, 

however, was covered by a reversal of our price fl uctua-

tion reserve. Taken together, the Company posted net in-

come of ¥10.1 billion, up ¥2.2 billion from the previous 

fi scal year. On a consolidated basis, including Sonpo 24 

Insurance Co., Ltd., NIPPONKOA Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 

and other consolidated subsidiaries, the Company posted 

an ordinary loss of ¥3.0 billion, while net income totaled 

¥9.9 billion, a gain of ¥0.9 billion from the previous 

fi scal year. 

Completion of Our KAKUSHIN Medium-Term 

Business Plan

Fiscal 2008 was the fi nal year of our KAKUSHIN (Reform, 

Core, Confi dence) medium-term business plan, which 

began in April 2006. Unfortunately we were unable to 

achieve the expansion in scale that we had envisioned, 

primarily due to severe economic conditions, weaker-

than-expected personal spending, and the effects of the 

mandated cut in rates for compulsory automobile liability 

insurance. In view of this situation, we revised our goals 

and decided to place primary emphasis during the fi nal 

year of the plan on improving underwriting profi tability. 

As a result of these efforts we were able to lower our 

loss ratio, primarily by enhancing underwriting. With 

regard to our goal of controlling underwriting expenses, 

during the three years of KAKUSHIN we succeeded in 

reducing expenses by ¥24 billion. As mentioned above, 

by placing a strong emphasis on improving underwriting 

We are pleased to report that earnings improved in fi scal 2008, the fi nal year of our KAKUSHIN medium-term 

business plan. This fi scal year we have already started our new medium-term plan, and we are moving boldly 

forward with preparations to implement the agreement reached at the end of fi scal 2008 to integrate our business 

operations with those of SOMPO JAPAN INSURANCE INC. 

To Our 
Shareholders
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profi tability, our underwriting balance (excluding com-

pulsory automobile liability insurance) moved into the 

black during the fi nal year of the plan.

Three Pillars of the New Medium-Term Business Plan

The achievements of KAKUSHIN laid the foundation for 

our new two-year, medium-term business plan, which 

began in fi scal 2009. The new plan is designed to increase 

corporate value by promoting strategies centered on 

three major themes, “Contribution to Society,” “Quality 

Improvement” and “Profi tability Improvement.” 

 In the area of contribution to society, our goal is to en-

hance corporate value by promoting an environmentally 

sustainable business model. As an insurance company, 

our mission is to provide safety and peace of mind for 

our customers. To do this, we believe we must also play 

a leading role in helping to prevent global warming. In 

the area of quality improvement, our failure to pay out 

incidental claims and improper nonpayment of claims 

caused us to lose the trust of many of our customers. It 

is therefore essential that we continue to promote our 

ongoing company-wide “Quality Improvement Program” 

to ensure that such incidents are never repeated. 

 The two years of our new medium-term plan will 

be spent on implementing measures that offer solutions 

to problems facing society, and on improving the qual-

ity of our business practices. During this period we will 

also reinforce our business foundations to enhance our 

earnings capacity, and explore the potential for strategic 

growth fi elds. (See page 6 for an overview of the new 

medium-term business plan.)

Embracing a New Opportunity 

NIPPONKOA and SOMPO JAPAN INSURANCE INC. 

reached a basic agreement on March 13, 2009 to inte-

grate their business operations through formation of a 

joint holding company pursuant to a joint stock transfer, 

contingent upon approval by stockholders and the rele-

vant regulatory agencies. The target date for completion 

of business integration is April 2010. 

 The new Group will take full advantage of the col-

lective expertise of the two companies, which together 

have been nurtured through 120 years of experience in 

the insurance business. The new Group’s aim is to create 

a “new solution service Group that provides customers 

with the highest level of security and service, and con-

tributes to social welfare and peace of mind, while being 

a factor in the betterment of society.” (See the following 

pages for further details on the business integration.) 

 Fiscal 2009 is an exceptionally important year. Not 

only is it the fi rst year of our new medium-term business 

plan, but also it is a year in which we will be preparing 

to put into operation our new business integration agree-

ment. Economic conditions remain severe, but the entire 

NIPPONKOA Insurance Group is fi rmly committed to 

achieving further growth and increasing corporate value. 

I appreciate your continued support of our Company.

August 2009

Makoto Hyodo

President & CEO

 Makoto Hyodo
President & CEO
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In the face of the declining birthrate and aging society—the 
signifi cant challenges Japan faces in the medium to long-
term period—as well as increased risks associated with 
depopulating society, global climate change, and in response 
to the diversifi ed consumer demands amidst the individuals’ 
lifestyle changes, companies are urged to take proper ac-
tions and contribute to social safety and customers’ sense of 

NIPPONKOA  and SOMPO JAPAN will pursue realization 
of the “New Group” as provided below, aiming to receive 
overwhelming support from 
their stakeholders, with a view, 
at the core of the management, 
to “making all value judgments 
from the perspective of cus-
tomers, providing customers 
with security and service of the 
highest quality and contributing 
to social welfare.” 

security. Based on this shared perspective, the Parties de-
cided to establish a “new solution service group that provides 
customers with security and service of the highest quality 
and contributes to social welfare” (the “New Group”), while 
sharing as a unitary group the strengths nurtured through 
120 years of their respective history. 

1. The group that seeks to provide the highest-quality security and service  

2. The group with focus on its business in Japan 

3.  The group that provides a broad range of solutions friendly to the society 
and the environment 

4.  The group that seeks to maximize the shareholder value 

5.  The group with a free, vigorous, open and energetic corporate culture 

6.  The group independent from the influence of any corporate or financial group 

I. Background and Objectives of Business Integration 

II. Management’s Vision and the New Group’s Aspirations 

NIPPONKOA Insurance Co., Ltd. (President & CEO: Makoto Hyodo) (“NIPPONKOA”) and SOMPO JAPAN INSURANCE 

INC. (President and Chief Executive Offi cer: Masatoshi Sato) (“SOMPO JAPAN”) (collectively, the “Parties”) signed a 

“Memorandum of Understanding” on March 13, 2009, agreeing to establish a joint holding company through a joint 

stock transfer, subject to approval by both each Party’s shareholders’ meeting and the relevant regulatory authori-

ties. The Parties aim to complete their business integration in April 2010.

Business Integration 

(From left) Masatoshi Sato, SOMPO JAPAN, and Makoto Hyodo, NIPPONKOA
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III. Effects of Business Integration 

The New Group aims to achieve sustainable growth, en-
hance corporate value and contribute to social welfare by 
further pursuing revenue growth and effi ciency through its 
post-integration position and strengths in the industry, as 
well as by implementing a thoroughgoing business alliance, 
promptly taking feasible actions and quickly maximizing 
synergy effects through the business integration by way of 
such measures as standardization and sharing of functions 
and services.  
�  Top-level non-life insurance market share in approxi-

mately half the number of the prefectures in Japan 
�  Strong distribution channels supported by exclusive and 

specialized professional agents 
�  Overwhelming strengths in fi nancial institution-related 

agents, especially regional banks 

1. Perspective of Customers 

NIPPONKOA and SOMPO JAPAN will review, “from the per-
spective of customers,” their entire service process from the 
execution of insurance contracts to payment for insurance 
claims. By making use of the know-how, infrastructures and 
management resources of the Parties while keeping in mind 
such keywords as “convenience” and “easy to understand,” 
NIPPONKOA and SOMPO JAPAN will seek to provide a sense 
of security in ways that meet the customer expectations.  

2. Contribution to Social Welfare 

The Parties will: 
(1)  Accelerate the contemplated scheme to establish new 

business for security and safety beyond the conventional 
framework of insurance business, such as healthcare 
business and risk consulting business, by using the 
know-how and the business infrastructures developed by 
both companies.  

(2)  Become proactively involved with global environmental 
problems and joint development and provision of “prod-
ucts and services that would help mitigate global warm-
ing problems.”

3. Enhancement of Corporate Value 

NIPPONKOA and SOMPO JAPAN will:
(1)  Consider the best combination of underwriting, sales 

and claims functions in the life insurance business and 
consolidate the overall operational system with the goal 
of enhancing the life insurance business.  

(2)  Aim to enhance profi tability by jointly expanding the 
overseas insurance business with high growth potential 
through consideration of M&A and review of the existing 
overseas sales network. 

(3)  Seek to improve the group management efficiency 
through consideration and promotion of integration or 
reorganization in the businesses associated with the ex-
isting fi nancial related businesses. 

(4)  Seek to increase the insurance profi ts by centralizing the 
risk management process through a joint risk manage-
ment system and by sharing the know-how of underwrit-
ing. 

(5)  Seek to improve the expense ratio by standardizing and 
sharing the business base such as profi t management by 
business unit, customer centers, IT systems and adminis-
trative services. 

(6)  Consider reduction of procurement cost by making an ef-
fective use of real estates under their ownership, reform-
ing the supply chain such as joint purchase of materials 
and goods and the distribution system as well as by pro-
moting shared services. 

(7)  Seek to improve their capital effi ciency and fi nancial base 
through enhanced sophistication of the internal model 
such as capital adequacy measurement, and through cau-
tious inspection and due diligence review of the invest-
ment returns of the stock holdings based on the advanced 
risk management method. 

(8)  Jointly improve and streamline their operational plat-
forms and management and risk control systems while 
in compliance with the enforcement of the Insurance 
Law, the Financial Instrument and Exchange Law, the 
International Accounting Standards and others. 
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In fi scal 2009 we started a new two-year, medium-term business plan. The basic idea behind this plan is to enhance 

corporate value by implementing strategies centered on three major themes, “Contribution to Society,” “Quality 

Improvement” and “Profi tability Improvement.”

Overview of the New Medium-Term Business Plan

Medium-Term Vision (Aspiration)

  Provide society- and environment-friendly security and safety through our 
core insurance business

Three Main Points of the New Medium-Term Business Plan:

Contribution to Society
 �  Environmental efforts  

(provide carbon-offsetting products/claims-handling service, promote eco-safe driving, etc.)

 � Exercise CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) as an “Eco-First Company”

 �  Contribute to both the global environment and our revenue opportunities through the insurance business 
and other new business areas compatible with the insurance business

Quality Improvement
 �  Provide best claims-handling service (24 hours a day, 365 days a year)

 �  Improve sales quality (enhance quality of agencies, propose a broad range of non-life 
and life insurance based on risk management)

 � Enhance product/operational quality (offer easy-to-understand products, simplify procedures, etc.)

 �  Ensure customers’ security and safety by improving quality in every step of the process 
from product development to claim payments

Profi tability Improvement
 �  Strengthen underwriting activities and prevent accidents (improve quality of policies in force, 

improve measures to prevent accidents, etc.)

 �   Improve profi tability of business units (conduct profi tability analysis by products/channels, establish 
and execute improvement plan quickly)

 �   Reduce operating expenses (reform business process, continue review of procurement practice, 
promote streamlining in sales process, etc.)

 �   Restructure asset management portfolio (reduce relationship stocks, etc.)

 �   Pursue stable revenue from our international business and capture growth opportunities 
(increase insurance business of Japanese corporations overseas, enhance Asian business operations, etc.)

 �  Enhance revenue base to achieve sustainable growth by improving underwriting profi tability 
and increasing competitiveness

New Medium-Term Business Plan Begins
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Below are the major fi nancial targets we have set for fi s-

cal 2009, the fi rst year of our new medium-term business 

plan. In view of the continuing severity of the business 

climate, we are forecasting a drop in net premiums writ-

ten, even excluding the effects of compulsory automobile 

liability insurance. However, claims payments are also 

expected to fall, so we estimate that our loss ratio (ex-

cluding compulsory automobile liability insurance) will 

improve by 0.5 percentage point to 61.9%. Our expense 

ratio (excluding compulsory automobile liability insur-

ance) will rise by 1.1% to 37.7%, as cost-cutting efforts 

will be offset by increased outlays for IT systems and 

quality upgrades aimed at helping us to interact more 

effectively with our customers. As a result, we forecast 

an underwriting balance of ¥2.5 billion in fi scal 2009, a 

decline of ¥2.9 billion compared with the previous fi scal 

year, and an underwriting loss of ¥4.0 billion. On the 

other hand, in terms of asset management, revaluation 

losses on the value of securities will be signifi cantly lower 

than in fi scal 2008, so we expect to post ordinary profi t 

of ¥22.0 billion, a year-on-year increase of ¥24.8 billion. 

Net income on both a consolidated and nonconsolidated 

basis is projected to be ¥13.0 billion.

Key Financial Targets for Fiscal 2009

Billions of Yen

(Nonconsolidated basis) FY2008  FY2009(E) Change

Net premiums written ¥  653.4  ¥  645.0 ¥ –8.4

Net premiums written (excl. CALI) 572.4 569.1 –3.3 

Loss ratio (excl. CALI) 62.4% 61.9% –0.5%

Expense ratio (excl. CALI) 36.6% 37.7% +1.1%

Underwriting balance (excl. CALI) 5.4 2.5 –2.9 

Underwriting profit (loss) 5.4 (4.0) –9.4 

Ordinary profit (loss) (2.8) 22.0 +24.8

Net income 10.1 13.0 +2.8

Adjusted income*1 12.6 17.0 +4.3

Adjusted ROE*2 2.6% 3.4% +0.8%

Billions of Yen (Except Where Noted)

(Consolidated basis) FY2008  FY2009(E) Change

Ordinary profit (loss) (3.0) 22.0 +25.0

Net income 9.9 13.0 +3.0

Adjusted income*3 15.2 22.0 +6.7

Adjusted ROE*4 2.6% 3.6% +1.0%

Assumptions of the plan

Paid losses from natural disaster: ¥13.0 billion

Gains on the sale of securities: ¥15.0 billion

*1:  Adjusted income (nonconsolidated) = (Underwriting 
profit + Provision for catastrophe reserve + Net interest/
dividend + Provision for reserve for price f luctuations – 
Special factors) x (1– Effective tax rate)
  Note: Negative for reversal of reserves

*2:  Adjusted ROE (nonconsolidated) = Adjusted income / 
Adjusted shareholders’ equity

•  Adjusted shareholders’ equity (nonconsolidated) = Net 
assets – Net unrealized gain on Available-for-sale securi-
ties – Subscription rights to shares + Catastrophe reserve 
+ Reserve for price f luctuations

*3:  Adjusted income (consolidated) = Nonconsolidated 
adjusted income + Sonpo 24/Overseas subsidiaries’ 
f inancial accounting net income + Adjusted increase in 
NIPPONKOA Life EV

•  Adjusted increase in EV excludes impacts from asset man-
agement, impacts from change of risk-based discounted 
rate and the amount of capital increase/reduction when 
it happens

*4:  Revised ROE (consolidated) = Adjusted income (consoli-
dated) / Adjusted shareholders’ equity (consolidated)

•  Adjusted shareholders’ equity (consolidated) = Adjusted 
shareholders’ equity (nonconsolidated) + Sonpo 24/
Overseas subsidiaries’ f inancial accounting net assets + 
NIPPONKOA Life EV
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The profi tability of NIPPONKOA’s core insurance busi-

ness is refl ected in its underwriting balance. In fi scal 

2008 we implemented several measures designed to 

increase our underwriting balance. To achieve a low, 

stable loss ratio, we strengthened our underwriting 

and accident prevention operations. We also introduced 

measures to drastically cut expenses. These steps have 

helped to boost earnings. In fi scal 2009 we will main-

tain this focus on profi ts, and will promote improving 

profi tability of each of our business units. 

(1) Measures to Improve the Loss Ratio

NIPPONKOA is working to build a high-quality insur-

ance portfolio by taking a cautious stance toward under-

writing. We also help our policyholders develop accident 

prevention measures.

 Specifi cally, we are taking steps to identify agencies 

where the loss ratio is consistently high, and after a 

thorough inspection and analysis of their portfolios, we 

are providing them with guidance on how to improve 

their underwriting. Agencies that show little sign of im-

provement may be subject to cancellation of their agency 

contracts with us. 

 Similarly, with regard to individual policies (policy-

holders) with high loss ratios we are utilizing driver 

safety tests and other means to help promote accident 

prevention. 

 For car fl eet insurance customers we have introduced 

an “Eco-safe driving contest,” which is helping to signifi -

cantly reduce the number of accidents while also provid-

ing benefi ts to the environment. 

 We will continue to reinforce these measures to main-

tain claims payments at reasonable levels, and to achieve 

low, stable loss ratios.

(2) Improving Profi tability at Each Business Unit

NIPPONKOA has introduced a new system to enable a 

detailed analysis of profi tability at each of our business 

units, broken down both by product and sales channel. 

This new system now makes it possible for us to quickly 

develop and implement effective measures to improve 

profi tability at the unit level, and is expected to con-

tribute to an expansion in earnings for the Company as 

a whole.

In “To Our Shareholders” we presented an overview of our new two-year medium-term business plan, which began 

in fi scal 2009, and discussed our plan for the business integration with SOMPO JAPAN INSURANCE INC. In this section, 

we provide a more detailed description of our business strategies.

1. Increasing the Underwriting Balance

Cautionary Statement: This publication contains estimates, projections, targets, and other f igures and statements related to the plans and future performance of NIPPONKOA Insurance Co., 
Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries. These estimates, projections, etc., are not historical facts. Rather, they are forward-looking f igures and statements based on the Company’s assumptions 
and beliefs in light of the information currently available to it. 

 Accordingly, these f igures and statements involve risks and uncertainties and do not guarantee actual future performance results. The Company cautions you that a number of factors could 
cause actual performance results to dif fer materially from those contained in this publication. Such factors include, but are not limited to, the items listed in “Infor mation on Risks and Uncertainties 
Related to Operations” on page 40 of this annual report.

Strategies 
in Focus
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(2) Key Initiatives

NIPPONKOA, based on considerations of marketing 

effi ciency and growth potential, is focusing particular 

attention on the four sales channels shown on the right 

side of the chart below: core agencies, car dealers, fi nan-

cial institutions, and life insurance companies (alliance 

partners). These are channels where we have a competi-

tive edge, and where marketing effi ciency is high, with 

the amounts of premium income generated per agency 

relatively large.

 Core agencies are a group of approximately 2,100 

professional agencies throughout Japan with whom 

NIPPONKOA has established close relationships over 

many years. These core agencies are extremely loyal 

to us, and as insurance professionals their expertise 

in consulting sales is a powerful aid to our marketing 

initiatives. We actively provide support for the business 

expansion of core agencies that consistently seek greater 

effi ciency and increased revenues, including assistance of 

their corporatization. 

 NIPPONKOA has also put in place an agency trainee 

system. Under this system, candidate agents are hired as 

temporary employees, and receive training over a three-

year period to enable them to establish new core agencies 

of their own.

NIPPONKOA recognizes that boosting premium income 

is essential to greater profi tability. However, although 

the business climate for the non-life insurance industry 

improved slightly, conditions remain harsh. Our target 

for fi scal 2009 (ending March 31, 2010) is to maintain 

premium income at the previous year’s level, with the 

exception of compulsory automobile liability insurance. 

Due to the reinsurance scheme of compulsory automo-

bile liability insurance, the effects of mandatory rate 

reduction in fi scal 2008 will continue for four months in 

fi scal 2009, so a decline in premium income is expected. 

To establish a solid earnings base, we are prioritizing 

quality (profi tability) of the insurance portfolio over 

premium growth.

(1) A Diverse Sales Network

NIPPONKOA derives its premium income from a diverse 

network of sales channels. We believe that this diversity 

enhances our ability to cope with changes in the busi-

ness environment while giving us steady access to a wide 

range of customers. We intend to maintain this diverse 

sales network and use it as a means of securing a stable 

premium income.

 The breakdown of NIPPONKOA’s premium income by 

distribution channel during fi scal 2008 is shown in the 

following chart.

2. Securing Premium Income

�  Breakdown of Premium Income 
by Distribution Channel 
(As of March 31, 2009)



S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s 
in

 F
o

cu
s

10

Company since March 2002, and with Meiji Yasuda Life 

Insurance Company since January 2004, under which 

sales people from both companies sell NIPPONKOA’s 

non-life insurance products. NIPPONKOA is the only 

non-life insurance company in Japan to have succeeded 

in forming such marketing agreements with several ma-

jor life insurance companies. This marketing approach 

holds much potential, and we anticipate strong growth 

through this channel in the future.

 As described above, NIPPONKOA has maintained 

close connections with major regional fi nancial insti-

tutions, and has succeeded in establishing cooperative 

sales agreements with several life insurance companies. 

We have been able to develop these highly fl exible alli-

ance strategies primarily because we are an independ-

ent company and not affiliated with any particular 

corporate group.

 We will continue to pursue a variety of other strategic 

alliances designed to increase premium income.

 Car dealers are by far our best marketing outlet among 

sales channels that primarily handle automobile insur-

ance, in terms of both scale and effi ciency. NIPPONKOA 

is not dependent on any particular carmaker, but instead 

maintains relationships with a wide range of car dealer-

ships. Approximately 10% of our voluntary automobile 

insurance is sold through this channel.

 Financial institutions comprise one channel where 

NIPPONKOA has a competitive advantage. We have es-

tablished strong relationships with fi nancial institutions 

throughout Japan, including major banks in all regions 

of the country, and have accumulated a great deal of 

expertise in working with such institutions. 

 Now that restrictions on the selling of insurance 

through financial institutions have been lifted, the 

Company is actively promoting the sale of automobile 

insurance at such institutions through the intermedi-

ary agency system developed by its subsidiary Sonpo 24 

Insurance. We plan to further strengthen this powerful 

new sales channel for growth in Group earnings.

 Life insurance companies (alliance partners) are an 

especially distinctive sales channel. We have had a co-

operative selling agreement with Taiyo Life Insurance 
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Deposit Premium Account
(35.6%) ALM (¥1,024.2 billion, 42.4%)

Yen-denominated bonds, loans, etc

Domestic / Foreign Bonds
(¥338.7 billion, 14.0%)

Alternatives (¥88.2 billion, 3.7%)

Relationship Stocks
(¥571.0 billion, 23.7%)

Others
(¥390.7 billion, 16.2%)

General Account
(64.4%)

Pure
Investment

Relationship
Investment

Asset Portfolio ¥2,412.8 billion (as of Mar. 2009) Asset Management Strategy

Minimize interest rate fluctuation risk through 
ALM in deposit premium account

Shift to hedged foreign bonds from 
yen-denominated bonds

Allocate limitedly, only when markets are stable, 
and maintain sufficient risk tolerance

 s book value 

 Note: Subject to change depending on the market environment

*1: (  ) Asset balance amount, component percentage, on the market value basis
*2: Other major components: cash and deposits (¥72.1 billion), loans (¥74.1 billion), real estate (¥116.9 billion), etc.
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are working to achieve stable returns by improving our 

asset portfolio.

NIPPONKOA is remaining focused on a sound and solid 

asset management strategy, while carefully monitoring 

trends in the unstable fi nancial markets, and paying 

close attention to risk management. At the same time, we 

3. Asset Management Strategies
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(2) Achieving a Stable Return on Assets

As we move to create a more balanced portfolio, we are 

reducing our holdings of relationship stocks. Proceeds 

from the sales of these stocks are being reinvested in 

fi xed-income securities to help maintain adequate li-

quidity. In fi scal 2009, we intend to shift into hedged 

foreign bond and other funds that promise relatively 

high returns.

 On the other hand, to improve our pure investment 

returns for several years, we had been increasing our 

holdings of alternative investments, but as the turmoil in 

fi nancial markets continued through fi scal 2008 we re-

shuffl ed and sold off some of these assets. Should markets 

stabilize in fi scal 2009 and risks fall to tolerable levels, 

we may reinvest in alternative investments, on a limited 

basis, aiming to achieve future returns and diversify risk. 

(1) Balancing Our Portfolio

One of the biggest challenges we face in creating a more 

balanced asset portfolio is reducing our investments in 

relationship stocks. It has been a long-standing custom 

in Japan for non-life insurance companies, including 

NIPPONKOA, to own large amounts of stock in client 

companies. In the past, this practice helped us to ce-

ment relationships with client companies and the large 

amount of unrealized gains on these stocks reinforced 

our fi nancial base. However, with the maturation of the 

Japanese economy and liberalization of the insurance 

market, it has become increasingly important to control 

the risks associated with stock price fl uctuations. To ac-

complish this, we will continue our efforts to bring the 

balance of relationship stocks held for strategic purposes 

within the range of shareholders’ equity.

 Another important challenge is to strengthen asset 

and liability management (ALM). NIPPONKOA seeks to 

optimize its risk-return balance through proper man-

agement of interest rate risk. For this reason, we invest 

the proceeds from sales of relationship stocks primarily 

in fi xed-income securities. This also helps us to secure 

and maintain the liquidity needed to cover insurance 

claim payments.
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agencies are able to accurately recognize shifts in cus-

tomer needs arising from such factors as the continued 

falling birthrate and aging population, as well as chang-

ing lifestyles, and link these to expanded sales of life 

insurance products. 

 Sales through fi nancial institutions and their affi li-

ated agencies is an area we intend to further strengthen 

going forward. Financial institutions are an important 

marketing channel where we can exercise a competitive 

advantage. We believe there is ample room for further 

growth in life insurance product sales, including 

products for corporate clients in this channel.

 As a result of the steady expansion of business, we 

achieved the standard policy reserve at the end of fi scal 

2008 (ended March 31, 2009), and we forecast that from 

fi scal 2009 our life insurance business will begin to 

contribute to consolidated profi ts.

NIPPONKOA considers life insurance and non-life insur-

ance to be its two core businesses. The inclusion of life 

insurance not only allows us to offer a more expanded 

product lineup to better meet the needs of our custom-

ers, but it also enhances the stability of our business 

management by complementing the more volatile non-

life insurance business, which is susceptible to losses 

from natural disasters and other infl uences.

 NIPPONKOA Life Insurance Co., Ltd. is a core subsid-

iary in the NIPPONKOA Insurance Group, with respon-

sibility for its life insurance business. Its business has 

grown steadily since the start of operations in October 

1996, and embedded value as well as the amount of 

business in force for individual contracts has continued 

to increase. 

 NIPPONKOA Life Insurance Company’s marketing 

strength lies in its consulting sales centered on a net-

work of core agencies of its parent company. These core 

Existing business value Adjusted book value

Note: Total number is shown for fiscal 2009
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 Intermediary agencies earn a fee whenever they in-

troduce a customer to Sonpo 24. Explanation of impor-

tant policy terms, conclusion of contracts, collection of 

premiums and other underwriting tasks are handled by 

Sonpo 24, signifi cantly reducing the paperwork at the 

agency level. NIPPONKOA believes that this intermedi-

ary agency system is an ideal business model for sales 

through fi nancial institutions, and has been aggressively 

making proposals for agency contracts to them. 

 Sonpo 24 will continue to expand premium income 

by establishing cooperative arrangements with other life 

insurance companies and insurance agencies, and other 

channels. In addition, it is working to boost sales over 

the Internet as one means of drastically revising its busi-

ness processes to reduce operating expenses. As a result, 

we forecast that Sonpo 24 will move into the black in 

fi scal 2010 (ending March 31, 2011). 

Sonpo 24 Insurance Co., Ltd. was added to the NIPPONKOA 

Insurance Group in July 2004 as a non-life insurance 

company specializing in direct sales of voluntary auto-

mobile insurance. Sonpo 24 specializes in straight-

forward voluntary automobile insurance coverage at 

competitive premiums, and alongside NIPPONKOA, 

plays a role in reinforcing the Group’s core non-life in-

surance business. NIPPONKOA is the only major non-life 

insurance company in Japan with a direct sales entity 

that is also a wholly owned subsidiary.

 Sonpo 24 has two unique characteristics as a direct-

sales insurance company. First, it can take advantage of 

NIPPONKOA’s service network to provide high-quality 

claims-handling services nationwide. Second, in addition 

to Internet sales it can reach customers through a system 

of intermediary agencies.

5. Sonpo 24
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the solvency margin at the end of March 2009 confi rmed 

that NIPPONKOA has sufficient capital to continue 

business operations with virtually no disruption, even 

if a once-in-200-years, worst-case event were to oc-

cur during fi scal 2009. As a result, it is our assessment 

that the Company has adequate capital to cover its 

retained risk. 

 To maintain a high degree of fl exibility in its capi-

tal management policies and strategic investments, 

NIPPONKOA will continue to work to increase profi t-

ability of its business, while at the same time reducing 

retained risk by trimming its relationship stock holdings 

and other high-risk assets.

 We will continue to carefully monitor our capital 

adequacy and analyze our profi tability as we work to 

provide returns to our shareholders through continued, 

stable dividend payments and timely share buybacks.

� Shareholder Return Indices (Nonconsolidated Basis)
FY2005 FY2006 FY2007 FY2008

Dividend per share ¥7.5 ¥7.5 ¥7.5 ¥8.0 

Buyback per share ¥11.8 ¥8.7 ¥48.8 ¥8.9

Dividend payout ratio 46.0% 44.8% 73.6% 60.0% 

Total payout ratio 118.1% 97.0% 553.3% 126.5% 

Dividend on equity 0.8% 0.8% 0.9% 1.4% 

Total payout on equity 2.0% 1.7% 8.0% 3.7% 

Note:  Total payout ratio is the sum of dividend and share buybacks divided by 
net income.

Evaluating retained risk and monitoring suffi ciency of 

the solvency margin is an extremely effective means 

of maintaining operational soundness for a non-life 

insurance company.

 NIPPONKOA evaluates its retained risk with an inte-

grated risk management model using Dynamic Financial 

Analysis, a method that simulates various insurance 

claim and asset management scenarios and varies a num-

ber of other parameters to predict possible changes in 

capital levels. 

 We defi ne the amount of retained risk as equivalent to 

the total losses at the 99.5% confi dence level, and assess 

our capital suffi ciency using this method. Our analysis of 

This final section presents NIPPONKOA’s policy on 

shareholder returns.

 NIPPONKOA strives to provide its shareholders with 

stable, continuous dividends. In fi scal 2008 improved 

underwriting profi tability enabled us to raise our annual 

cash dividend by ¥0.5 per share to ¥8.0, with a dividend 

payout ratio of 60.0%.

 In addition to the payment of cash dividends, 

NIPPONKOA carries out timely share buybacks. In 

fi scal 2008 we repurchased 10 million shares (repur-

chase amount of ¥6.7 billion). As of the end of March 

2009, a cumulative total of 120 million shares had been 

repurchased, of which 57 million shares have already 

been retired.

6. Evaluating Risk and Ensuring Capital Adequacy

7. Shareholder Returns
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NIPPONKOA places the customer at the center of all its 

business activities. As well as pursuing even more rig-

orous compliance standards, the Group is undertaking 

measures to enhance its risk management systems and 

improve quality of operations. By fulfi lling our role as 

a good corporate citizen, we aim to become the trusted 

fi rst choice of all our stakeholders. To realize this goal, 

NIPPONKOA is building management structures as 

outlined below. NIPPONKOA’s corporate governance 

systems are summarized as follows.

 The Board of Directors comprises up to 15 members, 

including directors appointed from outside the Company. 

In principle, the Board of Directors holds regular meet-

ings twice a month, facilitating vigorous debate based on 

the diverse views of an appropriate number of members. 

In June 2009, the General Meeting of Shareholders ap-

pointed four outside directors out of a total of 11 direc-

tors. Furthermore, to clarify management responsibility, 

the term of appointment for directors is set at one year.

 The Company has adopted a system of corporate of-

fi cers. Under the leadership of the chief executive offi cer, 

the corporate officers are responsible for the execu-

tion of our operations, while the Board of Directors is 

charged with supervising and monitoring the corporate 

offi cers’ execution of duties. By separating the roles of 

the corporate offi cers and the Board of Directors, the 

Company aims to expedite decision-making and clarify 

management authority and responsibilities. In addi-

tion, a Management Committee—comprising the chief 

executive offi cer, corporate offi cers in charge of opera-

tions, executive directors and others—convenes weekly.

 NIPPONKOA has adopted the corporate auditor and 

Board of Corporate Auditors system. A maximum of 

fi ve corporate auditors may be appointed and currently 

we have fi ve corporate auditors and three independent 

corporate auditors.

 The Company has established a Nominations and 

Remuneration Committee as an advisory body to the 

Board of Directors. The majority of its members are 

drawn from outside NIPPONKOA. The Committee 

deliberates on matters relating to the selection and 

remuneration of officers of the Company and its 

domestic insurance subsidiaries, and provides advice and 

recommendations to the Board of Directors. 

 Remuneration for directors and corporate officers 

comprises three components: basic remuneration, busi-

ness performance-based remuneration, and remunera-

tion in the form of the Company’s stock. The stock-based 

remuneration is effected through the granting of “stock 

options for the purpose of remuneration.” The exercise 

date of these stock options is set to fall after the director or 

corporate offi cer has completed his or her term of offi ce.

 In accordance with its Information Disclosure Rules, 

the Company has established the Corporate Information 

Disclosure Committee. Based on this system, the 

Company promotes the appropriate disclosure of timely, 

accurate and fair corporate information.

Corporate 
Governance 

The NIPPONKOA Insurance Group is working to further strengthen corporate governance, promote compliance, and 
implement appropriate risk management so that it can contribute to realizing a sustainable society for the benefi t of 
future generations.

Corporate Governance
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As fi nancial services become more deregulated and glo-

balized, the diversity and complexity of risks faced by 

fi nancial institutions are also increasing. NIPPONKOA 

recognizes that robust management of more diverse and 

complex risks, sound business operations and steady earn-

ings growth are essential to gain the broad trust of markets 

and customers. The following basic policies have been 

adopted to strengthen and enhance risk management.

 Remain fully alert to the possibility that changes in 

the insurance business environment may lead to emer-

gence of new operational risks. Conduct risk manage-

ment as a means of dealing with such changes rapidly 

and effectively.

 Accurately identify each type of risk and fully analyze 

and evaluate these risks. Develop and utilize rational 

methods for quantifying risk as much as possible.

 From the standpoint of maintaining effi cient and ef-

fective operations, work to mitigate risk and prevent gen-

eration and escalation of losses arising from occurrence 

of a risk event.

 From the standpoint of securing and expanding profi t 

opportunities, where it is necessary to intentionally 

incur risk, contain risk within acceptable levels.

 Take proactive measures to mitigate risks that may 

have a direct negative impact on customers, to gain and 

maintain the trust of customers.

Risk Management
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directly linked to management decision-making 

and working to further strengthen its risk management 

functions.

 NIPPONKOA also implements an integrated risk 

management system to help maintain sound business 

management and to ensure the effective and effi cient use 

of management resources. Under this system, the VaR* 

(Value at Risk) metric is utilized for evaluation of risks to 

confi rm the adequacy of the Company’s capital reserves. 

Also, sensitivity analysis is utilized to analyze a variety 

of risks such as asset management risk. We also conduct 

stress testing to estimate the potential effect on our busi-

ness of specifi c putative events such as large-scale natural 

and other disasters.

*Value at Risk: The maximum putative loss from future events within a given probability 
range. In  evaluating its capital adequacy, NIPPONKOA uses VaR to calculate the maximum 
annual loss expected to occur in such scenarios as a once-in-a century event.

reporting directly to the Compliance Department—

at each of our regional headquarters. These measures are 

designed to improve the system of checks and balances 

by granting the Compliance Department the authority to 

conduct investigations into alleged impropriety and issue 

directives for remedial action to department and branch 

managers. Furthermore, the head of each front-line orga-

nizational unit dealing with customers (division, branch, 

department and claims services center managers) has 

been given responsibility for compliance as a means of 

building a clear and strong compliance structure.

Compliance Program Designed to Improve 

Customer Satisfaction

NIPPONKOA has formulated a compliance program 

action plan to promote our fundamental policy of 

achieving full compliance with all relevant laws and 

regulations. Specifi cally, we have established a customer-

oriented quality assurance cycle that analyzes customer 

feedback as a means of further improving quality, and 

we are also taking steps to ensure that our sales network 

A Comprehensive Approach to Risk Management 

across the Entire Organization

NIPPONKOA classifi es the risks it must manage in the 

course of its business operations into eight categories: 

insurance underwriting risk; asset management risk; 

system risk; administrative risk; domestic business risk; 

overseas business risk; disaster risk; and reputation risk. 

For operations that involve exposure to each of these 

risk categories, departments work to identify, analyze, 

evaluate and manage all such risks.

 The risk management status of each operating de-

partment is controlled using a comprehensive approach 

across the entire organization by the Risk Management 

Committee. This multilevel framework facilitates a 

comprehensive approach to risk management.

 In adopting this approach, we are building a system 

Liberalization of fi nancial markets is forcing fi nancial 

institutions to adopt strict corporate policies based 

on the principle of accountability and responsibility. 

Regrettably, despite such expectations, certain actions of  

the Company have undermined the trust placed in it by 

customers and society. These actions have included cases 

in which the Company failed to pay out fringe claims on 

insurance policies and cases of improper nonpayment 

of claims relating to third-sector insurance products, 

as well as for overcharging on insurance premiums. In 

light of these problems, NIPPONKOA is committed to 

further reinforcing the importance of compliance as the 

foundation of all its business operations. In addition, 

NIPPONKOA is revamping its operations to ensure that 

its methods of soliciting of insurance products are ap-

propriate and to reinforce payment systems for claims on 

insurance policies. Through these efforts, we are striving 

to rebuild the trust of our customers and society.

 To bolster our compliance systems, we have established 

a Compliance Committee and Compliance Department. 

We have also established regional compliance offi ces—

Compliance
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is able to respond appropriately to customer needs. In 

particular, we have established a qualifi cation system and 

education and training programs to improve the quality 

of our sales agencies (sales staff), and we are thoroughly 

implementing “Sales and Soliciting Rules” that require 

sales staff to provide customers with an explanation of 

the substantive features of our insurance products, and 

to confi rm that the customer understands and approves 

of the content of each insurance policy before it is sold. 

Moreover, as part of our efforts to ensure that claims 

are paid appropriately and in a timely manner we have 

instituted education and training programs for the su-

pervisors of our claims divisions. In addition, the Claims 

Payment Management Department carefully monitors 

the adequacy of all claims processing and payment 

operations. We have also taken steps to improve the func-

tions of our various customer service systems, including 

our Claims Payment Examination Council and Declined 

Claims Complaint Section. 

 For a complete overview of measures being under-

taken by NIPPONKOA to restore customer trust, please 

see “Enhancing Customer Trust,” on the following pages.
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In March 2007, the Financial Services Agency ordered 
NIPPONKOA to partially suspend operations and issued 
a business improvement directive due to a large number 
of cases of improper nonpayment of claims for medical 
and other third-sector insurance products. To ensure that 
such an incident is never repeated, we implemented a 
customer-based review of all of our business practices, and 
in April 2007 we drew up a Management Improvement 
Plan designed to restore public trust and confi dence in 
the Company. The steady implementation of this plan is 
now our top management priority. Following is a brief 
overview of our Management Improvement Plan and of 
the progress achieved in fi scal 2008.

I.  Reforming and Strengthening Governance Systems 

�  Improving Management through Customer 

Feedback

Our Quality Control Department was established in June 
2007 to develop a customer-based Quality Improvement 
Cycle. Since that time, the department has been respon-
sible for integrating and analyzing all feedback from 
customers, agencies and employees. It has also played a 
central role in preparing NIPPONKOA to achieve com-
pliance with ISO 10002, the international standard for 
managing customer complaints. This goal was met in 
May 2008 with the announcement of the implementa-
tion of a Complaints Management System in conformity 
with this standard. 

�  Establishment of “Quality Standards,” and 

Implementation of Phase 2 of Our Quality 

Improvement Program

In June 2008 NIPPONKOA established “Quality Stand-
ards,” for customer interaction, and for products and 
services, based on the results of an analysis of customer 
complaints. In addition, in July 2008 we introduced 
Phase 2 of our Quality Improvement Program. This pro-
gram was started on a company-wide basis in 2007 and 
is helping us to achieve higher levels of quality.
 

�  Strengthening of Internal Control Systems Relating 

to Product Development

Since June 2007, the Quality Control Department has 
served as a secretariat responsible for convening ses-
sions of the Product Development Review Council. This 
department coordinates and monitors the activities of 
the various divisions involved in product development, 
and takes any remedial actions required to ensure 
customer protection.

� Strengthening of Internal Auditing Systems 

Since April 2007, steps have been taken to boost the effec-
tiveness of our internal controls by increasing the num-
ber of staff employed at the Internal Audit Department 
and by upgrading the department’s planning and inspec-
tion functions. Moreover, since July 2007 we have been 
conducting unannounced inspections of agency offi ces, 
and providing guidance for operational reforms. 

II.  Reforming and Strengthening of Our Insurance 

Claims Payment Management System 

�  Reinforcing the Functions of the Claims Payment 

Examination Council  

NIPPONKOA has established the Claims Payment 
Examination Council, comprised of experts from out-
side the Company, which reviews any cases that require 
special expertise in the fi elds of medicine or law, and 
to advise on the appropriateness of claims payment or 
nonpayment decisions. In June 2007, review functions 
were further reinforced by creation of the Third-Sector 
Claims Examination Sub-Group, and the General Claims 
Examination Sub-Group. 

�  Inspections by the Claims Payment Management 

Department  

The Claims Payment Management Department conducts 
site inspections of NIPPONKOA’s claims service centers 
across the country and carries out document examina-
tions to monitor the adequacy of claims payments and to 
ensure that customers are receiving appropriate informa-
tion in a timely manner. In fi scal 2008, site inspections 
were carried out at 136 locations in our non-marine 
divisions, and 10 locations in our marine division. 

Enhancing Customer Trust
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III.  Ensuring a Fair and Appropriate Insurance 

Solicitation Process

� Solicitation System for Third-Sector Products 

Since July 2007, the Company has been conducting train-
ing and testing for a party that is soliciting or selling 
third-sector insurance products. Only soliciting parties 
who pass a comprehension test are allowed to sell third-
sector products. 

� Establishment of Claims Consultation Corners 

Since October 2006, Claim Consultation Corners have 
been set up at a Customer Consultation Offi ce (now 
known as Customer Supporting Office) to handle 
complaints or issues related to claims payments. 

�  Customer Surveys on Solicitation Practices 

To evaluate our level of compliance with the Quality 
Standards instituted in fi scal 2008 from our customers’ 
point of view, we conducted a survey of 79,000 policy 

holders. The results of this survey are being used to im-
prove our insurance solicitation practices, enhance the 
quality of NIPPONKOA and its agencies, and upgrade our 
business operations. 

IV.  Reforming and Strengthening Compliance Systems

� Strengthening Compliance Systems 

In June 2007, NIPPONKOA established regional compli-
ance offi ces staffed by 109 agency inspectors in order 
to strengthen our ability to monitor agency operations 
and reinforce our compliance systems. Furthermore, we 
monitor and survey the status of implementation of oper-
ational reforms at all of our agencies on an annual basis. 

� Improving Compliance Training 

We carry out compliance training programs twice a 
year for all offi cers and all agencies, and we utilize an 
e-learning program to conduct supplementary training.

System for gathering a wide range of the views from customers

 Agency 
 monitoring

 Complaint 
 system

Response 
directives

Customer views 
(complaints) 
handling training

Disclosure

Verif ication

Improved openness and accessibility at 
customer service counters

Reports

Auditing

Directives and 
recommendations

Improvement 
measures

Allocation of management 
resources

Customer views 
(Complaints)

Discussion 
and reports

� Quality Improvement Cycle Starting with Customer Views
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Prevention of Global Warming

�  Reducing CO2 Emissions by 15% through 

Compliance with ISO 14001

NIPPONKOA is developing an environmental manage-

ment system (EMS) based on the ISO 14001 standard. 

Our head offi ce site obtained ISO 14001 certifi cation in 

2002, followed by the rest of the Group’s domestic offi ces 

in 2007.  Since fi scal 2008, all Company employees have 

been participating in a program designed to reduce our in-

house carbon emissions by 15%, with 

the eventual aim of achieving zero 

CO2 emissions and becoming com-

pletely carbon neutral. Our initial goal 

is to realize at least a 15% reduction 

in emissions by fi scal 2012, compared 

with the level in fi scal 2006. 

�  “Eco-First” Recognition by the Minister of 

the Environment

NIPPONKOA became the fi rst company in the insurance 

industry to receive “Eco-First Company” certifi cation 

as part of the “Eco-First Program” established by the 

Ministry of the Environment.

“Contributing to Society” is a central feature of the NIPPONKOA Insurance Group’s new medium-term business plan, 
which began in fi scal 2009. The Group’s social action initiatives are intended not only to fulfi ll its corporate social 
responsibility (CSR), but also to enhance corporate value by promoting a sustainable balance between business and 
the environment. NIPPONKOA recognizes that environmental protection, particularly the prevention of global warm-
ing, is the most serious challenge facing humanity today, and the Company is aggressively implementing strategies 
to meet this challenge, including its announcement in July 2008 that it intended to become carbon neutral. 

Corporate 
Social 

Responsibility

Environmental Initiatives

The Eco-First Commitments*:

�  As a company committed to becoming carbon 

neutral, we pledge to reduce CO2 emissions. 

�  We will use our insurance products and services 

to promote a wider awareness of the importance 

of environmental protection. 

�  We will support realization of a low-carbon 

society through our corporate activities.

*  Under the Ministry of the Environment’s “Eco-First Program,” NIPPONKOA 
has made the “Eco-First Commitments” to implement strategies to protect 
the environment. 
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4,975t (10%)

Waste  2,625t (5%)

Commuting  1,201t (2%)

Outside the Company  370t (1%)
Office
(utilities, water)
27,164t
(53% )

Marketing/
business travel
7,712t (15%)

Paper/printing
7,301t (14%)
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Reducing In-House CO2 Emissions

�  Becoming a Carbon Neutral Company 

(Zero CO2 Emissions)

In July 2008, NIPPONKOA announced its goal of becom-

ing a carbon neutral (zero emission) company by fi scal 

2012. The Company pledged to achieve a reduction of 

at least 15% in its CO2 emissions by fi scal 2012 (using 

fi scal 2006 as the baseline), and it will purchase CO2 

emission credits to offset any emissions that it is unable 

to eliminate completely. NIPPONKOA’s effort to become 

carbon neutral covers all of its business activities, and 

its carbon footprint boundary encompasses not only 

easily measured and controlled parameters such as CO2 

emissions from electricity and gasoline consumption, 

but also those from other corporate activities, including 

marketing, business travel, paper use, printing, logistics 

and commuting. 

Helping our Customers Reduce CO2 Emissions

NIPPONKOA is both working to reduce its in-house 

emissions and taking steps to help its customers and 

other stakeholders reduce their emissions. For example, 

in the case of voluntary automobile insurance, we have 

introduced eco-friendly systems and services that allow 

our customers to contribute to environmental protection 

at the time a policy is purchased, during the period the 

policy is in force, and even in case of an accident.

  “Carbon Offset Auto Insurance with Web 

Confi rmation Provision”

  Whenever a customer chooses to receive their insur-

ance policy and terms and conditions in digital format 

over the Internet instead of on paper, NIPPONKOA 

will purchase a ¥50 carbon offset (for investment in 

a UN-approved program for the Clean Development 

Mechanism (CDM) and will donate the credit to the 

Japanese government. 

 “Carbon Offset in Claim Handling”

  Whenever a customer who owns vehicle damage 

claims is involved in an accident and chooses to have 

a resin bumper repaired rather than replaced, or 

selects eco-parts (recycled parts) instead of new parts 

for replacement, a similar ¥50 carbon offset will 

be purchased.
�  Proportion of CO2 Emitted through NIPPONKOA’s Business 

Activities (Fiscal 2006)

Amount of 
CO2 

emissions

Amount of 
CO2 

emissions

Amount of 
CO2 

reduction
Amount of 

CO2 
emissions

Before purchase

Industrialized countries
(Europe, USA, Japan, etc.)

Developing countries
(South America, Asia, etc.)

After purchase After project Before project

Emissions-
reduction

efforts

Offset by
emission

credits

(1)  Participate 
in program

(2)
  Donate 

¥50 per 
case

(3)  Acquire emission 
credits

(4)  Transfer 
carbon 
credits

Funds 
for purchase 

of credits

Car repair 
shop

In case of an accident 
involving comprehen-
s ive coverage,  each 
t ime a pol ic yholder 
elects to repair rather 
than replace a resin 
bumper,  or chooses 
to use rec ycled “eco 
p a r t s ,”  N IPP O N KOA 
will donate ¥50 to sup-
port the development 
of natural energy in 
developing countries.
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Promotion of Eco-Safe Driving

NIPPONKOA is working to promote the concept of Eco-

Safe Driving as a means of contributing to environmental 

protection, reducing fuel consumption, and lowering 

accident rates. 

 

 “Eco-Safe Driving Contest”

  NIPPONKOA sponsors a contest for corporate automo-

bile users (fl eets) to promote “Eco-Safe Driving.”

 “Eco-Drive Instructor Qualifi cation System”

  As another means of promoting the concept of “Eco-

Safe Driving,” NIPPONKOA has developed its own 

Eco-Drive Instructor Qualifi cation System under which 

its agencies or employees offer concrete eco-driving 

advice to customers.

Environmental Protection Activities 

�  The NIPPONKOA Forest Program

As global warming becomes increasingly serious, more 

and more people are beginning to appreciate the im-

portance of woodlands. Forests are essential to our lives 

because they generate oxygen, help store valuable water 

resources, and provide habitat for wildlife. Since 1998, as 

part of an effort to promote reforestation, NIPPONKOA has 

been managing the 5.1-hectare (12.7-acre) NIPPONKOA 

Forest in the foothills of Mt. Yatsugatake in the town of 

Fujimi in Suwa-gun, Nagano Prefecture. This program is 

expanding; other NIPPONKOA Forest projects have been 

undertaken in cooperation with local prefectures in 2007 

(Kochi), 2008 (Miyazaki) and 2009 (Chiba).

“ECORaTTa” is a character 
symbolizing NIPPONKOA’s 
eco activities. 

Collaborative restoration activity in the NIPPONKOA Miyazaki Nishimera Forest
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�  Support for Education and Research

The Company sponsors lectures at universities at which 

NIPPONKOA staff help students understand how an in-

surance company operates. In addition, to help prepare 

today’s children to meet the needs of the 21st century, for 

the last six years we have been supporting a project that 

has donated books on environmental education to all 

45,000 elementary, middle, and high schools, as well as 

schools for the handicapped throughout Japan. 

NIPPONKOA Welfare Foundation

The NIPPONKOA Welfare Foundation was established 

in 1991 to offer support for a 

variety of activities related to 

caring for the elderly. More spe-

cifi cally, the foundation provides 

assistance to families caring for 

elderly members with senile de-

mentia, provides scholarships 

to students who plan to become 

nursing care workers, and aids 

gerontology research.

Support for Cultural Activities

NIPPONKOA also supports art exhibitions, concerts and 

other cultural events in accordance with its corporate 

philosophy of contributing to the development of a 

prosperous and wholesome society. NIPPONKOA was 

an active sponsor of the International Music Festival to 

Support Musicians from Eastern Europe, which was held 

in Hokkaido and Tokyo from October through November 

2008 as part of “Disabled Persons Week” activities, and 

of the “Louvre Museum Exhibition” held in Tokyo from 

February through June 2009.

 For further information about the NIPPONKOA 

Group’s CSR activities and achievements, please refer to 

our NIPPONKOA Insurance Group CSR Report 2008 (URL: 

http://www.nipponkoa.co.jp/; Japanese only).

In order to help create a sustainable society, the 

NIPPONKOA Insurance Group, as a responsible cor-

porate citizen, actively supports a variety of social 

action programs, including social welfare, cultural and 

artistic activities. 

�  NIPPONKOA Omoiyari Club

The NIPPONKOA Omoiyari Club is a voluntary organi-

zation founded in 1996 by directors and employees of 

NIPPONKOA. Members of the club contribute a portion 

of their monthly salary to the club’s funds, and whenever 

a charitable donation is made, the Company makes a 

matching donation of the same amount. In this way, both 

parties are able to work hand-in-hand for the benefi t of 

the community. The club makes donations on a regular 

basis based on recommendations from its members to 

various social welfare, environmental protection, and in-

ternational aid organizations. In addition, the Company 

donates money to support relief efforts after large-scale 

natural disasters. Major examples in recent years have 

been the big earthquake in southeast Iran in 2004, the 

large earthquake off Sumatra in 2005, the central Java 

earthquake that struck Indonesia in 2006, and the Great 

Sichuan Earthquake in China in 2008.

Gerontology Research Report

The Omoiyari Club made a donation to Kiyose Wakaba-kai, a citizens’ group 
supporting disabled people.

Social Action Programs
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Group Strategies

NIPPONKOA focuses on both life and non-life insurance in Japan in its efforts to ensure con-

tinued business expansion and greater earnings capacity for the entire NIPPONKOA Insurance 

Group. Within this framework we are working to strengthen the cooperative relationship 

between our two strategic subsidiaries, NIPPONKOA Life Insurance Co., Ltd. and Sonpo 24 

Insurance Co., Ltd.

� NIPPONKOA Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

NIPPONKOA Life Insurance has actively increased its amount of business in 

force through close cooperation with NIPPONKOA in cross-selling across its 

non-life sales network, building new direct sales structures, and developing 

new products, as it seeks to enhance the ability of the entire group to gen-

erate stable earnings. At the same time, NIPPONKOA is working to maintain the trust of its 

customers by improving the quality of its business operations, promoting CSR, improving 

compliance, and reinforcing risk management throughout its entire management structure.

� Sonpo 24 Insurance Co., Ltd.

The NIPPONKOA Insurance Group promotes its non-life insurance busi-

ness through Sonpo 24 Insurance Co., Ltd., a subsidiary that operates under different business 

model from its parent company. “Sonpo 24 Automobile Insurance” (comprehensive automo-

bile insurance available by direct marketing) was developed as part of our policy to “provide 

our customers with straightforward, easy-to-understand products at a price they can afford.” 

Under Sonpo 24’s direct marketing business model, customers become aware 

of its products through intermediary agencies or advertising, and then apply 

to purchase these products directly via the company’s website or call center. 

Sonpo 24 is also extending and diversifying its marketing routes by working 

closely with NIPPONKOA to expand its intermediary agency network.

Related Business Operations

NIPPONKOA also actively pursues businesses that supplement and strengthen the insurance 

business, such as fund management. Initiatives in business fi elds that generate synergistic 

benefi ts also allow NIPPONKOA to respond to the varied needs of its customers.

Overview of
Operations

7,
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Hana Koala is a trademark of 
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�  ZEST Asset Management Limited

Since 2005 NIPPONKOA has been making use of ZEST Asset Management Limited, a wholly 

owned subsidiary, to strengthen its asset management capabilities, and as a means of pen-

etrating the asset management market. By providing fund-of-funds products that meet the 

needs of institutional investors for access to the hedge fund market, and by making infor-

mation available to investors on hedge fund and other alternative investments, ZEST Asset 

Management is working diligently to expand its asset management business.

Strategic Alliances

NIPPONKOA takes full advantage of its position as an independent company to establish 

strategic alliances that would be impossible for traditional insurance companies that belong 

to any fi nancial groups.

�  Taiyo Life Insurance Company and Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company

NIPPONKOA has pursued ties with other life insurance companies as a means of expanding 

its sales channels. In 2002 Taiyo Life Insurance Company began marketing certain of our 

products using its own sales force, and since 2004 we have maintained a similar arrange-

ment with Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company. The number of NIPPONKOA policies sold 

through Taiyo Life Insurance and Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance now total around 160,000 and 

420,000 per year, respectively. 

�  Zurich Insurance Company

In December 2008 NIPPONKOA announced that it had entered into talks aimed at establish-

ing a business alliance with Zurich Insurance Company, one of the top insurance companies 

in the global market. We are currently discussing ways of working with Zurich in Japan to 

provide our customers with high-quality services and improve our business effi ciency.

Products and Services

NIPPONKOA strives to listens to its customers, respond to their needs, and provide consum-

er-focused, easy-to-understand products and services. 

� Easy-to-Understand Products

In December 2008 NIPPONKOA revised its “Car BOX” and other voluntary au-

tomobile insurance products to make them easier for customers to understand, 

and we also revised them with a more reasonable premium structure. We believe in 

providing socially responsible automobile insurance products, and this latest revision 

introduced a carbon-offset system to reinforce our efforts to combat global warming. In 

October 2008 we also revised our Kurashi-no-Anshin-Hoken (a combined policy including 

fi re, personal injury and personal liability insurance) products to make them more easily 

understandable, and revised those premiums as well.
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With increasing globalization of the economy, Japanese companies are very actively moving 

into overseas markets, increasing the need for insurance services overseas. In response to this 

situation, NIPPONKOA has developed various measures for each of the world’s major regions, 

strengthening our ability to take advantage of overseas opportunities.

Basic Policies Related to Overseas Strategy

�   Strengthening Services for Policyholders Moving into Overseas Markets

To provide various services locally to our corporate policyholders who have moved into 

overseas markets, NIPPONKOA is strengthening its services and support organization in each 

region in line with client needs through alliances with leading local insurance companies, 

together with optimal placement of representative offi ces, subsidiaries, affi liates, etc.

� Increasing Profi tability

The most important task is raising profi tability with development of overseas business. To 

this end, we strive to develop low-cost operations by continually improving our loss ratio and 

expense ratio at each overseas base.

� Thorough Risk Management and Compliance

To further enhance overseas risk management and compliance, we are pursuing various poli-

cies to strengthen internal control, together with strictly enforcing management measures at 

each business base to a degree equal to that of our domestic management system.

Main Events of Fiscal 2008

�   Approval to Establish a Subsidiary in China

In July 2008, NIPPONKOA received permission from the China Insurance Regulatory 

Commission to establish a 100% owned subsidiary in Shenzhen, Guangdong Province. Start 

of its operations is scheduled for August 2009.

�   Inauguration of Moscow Representative Offi ce

In October 2008, we established a representative offi ce in Moscow, Russia.

�   Investment in Thailand’s Navakij and Strengthening of Business Cooperation

In March 2009, we acquired 10% of the shares of the Thai non-life insurer The Navakij 

Insurance Public Co., Ltd., becoming its top shareholder. This investment makes it possible 

for NIPPONKOA to provide an even higher level of quality customer service in Thailand.

Overseas Service Organization by Region

NIPPONKOA has constructed an extensive overseas network, establishing insurance under-

writing fi rms and companies providing insurance-related services in the major bases, along 

with setting up 26 representative offi ces in 17 countries and regions throughout the world. 

(For details, please refer to pages 64–65.)

International Operations
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�   Service Organization in Europe

NIPPONKOA Insurance Company (Europe) Limited, our wholly owned subsidiary headquar-

tered in London, has operating licenses in the main European countries and provides ser-

vices such as underwriting and accident claims settlement. In Russia and Central and Eastern 

Europe, the company has established alliances with foremost local insurance companies and 

uses leading European specialists in areas like risk consulting and assessment, enabling it to 

supply complete services. It has received an Insurer Financial Strength Rating of “A” from 

Standard & Poor’s.

�   Service Organization in the United States and Canada  

Besides having acquired operating licenses in over 45 states and regions in the United States, 

NIPPONKOA has had a collaborative agreement for over 35 years with Travelers, a compre-

hensive property and casualty insurance fi rm with a major market share in that country. Our 

partner provides high-level services on a nationwide scale, starting with casualty insurance 

services and sophisticated risk control services.

�   Service Organization in China

In China, Japanese companies, one after the other, have moved into this huge market with 

the development of a favorable investment environment, starting with the legal system, since 

China’s participation in the World Trade Organization (WTO). NIPPONKOA had established 

a service organization of 6 representative offi ces. But with the inauguration of our new sub-

sidiary in Shenzhen, Guangdong Province in August 2009, we are able to provide an even 

wider range of services.

�   Service Organization in Asia and Oceania

The NIPPONKOA Singapore Branch and NIPPONKOA Insurance Company (Asia) Limited, 

which received an Insurer Financial Strength Rating of “A” from A.M. Best, are our two 

major self-operated bases in the Asian region. Furthermore, we operate PT Asuransi Permata 

Nipponkoa Indonesia under joint management with a local banking company. Moreover, we 

have strong partnerships with blue-chip insurance companies such as Lonpac Insurance Bhd 

of Malaysia, CGU Insurance Limited of Australia, Pioneer Insurance & Surety Corporation 

of the Philippines, Fubon Insurance Company Limited of Taiwan, and Siam Commercial 

Samaggi Insurance Public Company Limited and The Navakij Insurance Public Company 

Limited of Thailand to provide services to our customers.

Reinsurance

Reinsurance is one of the essential parts of the Company’s operations and is an important 

aspect of the business dealings with both domestic and overseas partners. NIPPONKOA has 

developed solid, long-term relationships with fellow insurance companies, allowing it to 

effectively diversify risks and provide reinsurance as needed. As for assumed business, we 

strive to be prudent and selective in our underwriting by focusing on the transparency of the 

risks involved.

Brussels

Düsseldorf

Moscow

Paris

London

New York

Toronto
Chicago

Los Angeles

 � Representative Of f ice

�Overseas Subsidiary or Af f iliate

As of July 1, 2009

Underwriting Agencies
United States:  The Travelers Marine 

Corporation

Guam (United States):
   Nanbo Guam, Ltd. 

Canada:
   St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance 

Company, Canada

Underwriting Agencies
Australia :  CGU Insurance Limited

Singapore:  NIPPONKOA Manage ment 
Service (Singapore) Private 
Limited

Shanghai
Shenzhen

Suzhou

Taipei

Hong Kong

Beijing

Qingdao

Dalian

Manila
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Singapore

Kuala Lumpur
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This section presents the operating results of the NIPPONKOA Insurance Group for fi scal 2008 

(April 1, 2008–March 31, 2009). The discussion focuses on the parent company NIPPONKOA 

Insurance Co., Ltd., and its principal consolidated subsidiaries, NIPPONKOA Life Insurance 

Co., Ltd. and Sonpo 24 Insurance Co., Ltd.

1. Key Indicators

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2009 2008 2009

Nonconsolidated basis:
 Parent company

  Net premiums written  ¥653,400  ¥688,892  $6,651,736 
  Loss ratio*1 66.7 % 65.4 % 66.7 %
  Expense ratio*2 35.1 % 34.9 % 35.1 %
  Underwriting profi t (loss) 5,445 (14,042) 55,436 
  Ordinary profi t (loss) (2,851) 16,769 (29,026)
  Net income 10,111 7,877 102,940 

Life insurance subsidiary

  Ordinary profi t 112 1,275 1,141 
  Net income (loss) (619) — (6,301)

Consolidated basis:
  Ordinary profi t (loss)  ¥ (3,043)  ¥  17,742  $   (30,978)
  Net income 9,971 8,991 101,507 

*1: Loss ratio = (Net losses paid + Loss adjustment expenses) / Net premiums written × 100
*2: Expense ratio =  (Operating and administrative expenses on underwriting +

Net commissions and brokerage expenses) / Net premiums written × 100

2. Net Premiums Written

Net premiums written in fi scal 2008 are as follows.

 Premiums for compulsory automobile liability insurance sharply declined due to an 

average reduction of 24% in premium rates. However, this line of insurance operates on a 

“no loss, no profi t” basis, so underwriting profi t is not affected. 

 Voluntary automobile insurance premium rates were raised in December 2008, but the 

average premium per vehicle has continued to decrease due to the impact of good-driver 

discounts and a shift toward smaller vehicles. In addition, the overall market contracted due 

to a steep decline in new car sales. As a result, premium income fell by 1.9% compared to the 

previous fi scal year.
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 Premiums for personal accident insurance declined 6.1% due to the impact from termina-

tion of new sales of third-sector policies to individuals,* and to sluggish demand for savings-

type policies because of low interest rates.

 In other categories, premiums for fi re insurance held steady at previous year levels, while 

marine insurance fell 13.5% due to a decline in shipping volumes and a strong yen.  Premium 

income for the “other” line also declined 1.7% from a year earlier despite strong sales of 

general liability insurance.

 As a result, net premiums written for all lines decreased 5.2% on a nonconsolidated basis, 

and 5.0% on a consolidated basis.

� Net Premiums Written
Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2009 2008 2009

Amount Change % change Amount Amount

Nonconsolidated basis (Parent company):
 Fire  ¥ 95,828  ¥   (52) (0.1)%  ¥  95,880  $  975,551 
 Marine 16,593 (2,599) (13.5)% 19,193 168,924 
 Personal accident 52,859 (3,447) (6.1)% 56,306 538,122 
 Voluntary automobile 325,120 (6,173) (1.9)% 331,294 3,309,793 
 Compulsory automobile liability 80,938 (21,837) (21.2)% 102,776 823,971 
 Other 82,058 (1,381) (1.7)% 83,440 835,374 

  All lines  ¥653,400  ¥(35,492) (5.2)%  ¥688,892  $6,651,736 

Consolidated basis:
  All lines  ¥663,888  ¥(34,797) (5.0)%  ¥698,685  $6,758,507 

3. Net Losses Paid

Net losses paid declined by ¥13.5 billion in fi scal 2008. Net losses paid for voluntary automo-

bile insurance fell by ¥8.7 billion as improved underwriting discipline and effective accident 

prevention programs helped reduce the number of incurred claims for bodily injury liability 

and property damage liability. There were relatively few natural disasters again this year, 

and as a result net losses paid for fi re insurance fell by ¥0.8 billion. Despite across-the-board 

declines in premium income, loss ratios improved by 1.5 percentage points to 66.9% in 

voluntary automobile insurance, and by 0.9 percentage point to 47.9% in fi re insurance.

 Net losses paid were also lower in all other categories except personal accident insurance. 

Claim payments for personal accident insurance grew by ¥1.1 billion, and the loss ratio rose 

6.1 percentage points compared to the previous fi scal year due to an increase in claims for 

residual disabilities and other factors.

 Overall, net premiums written (the denominator in the loss ratio) fell as a consequence 

of the lowering of compulsory automobile insurance premiums. As a result, the overall loss 

ratio for all lines rose 1.3 percentage points to 66.7%. Excluding the effects of the reduction 

in premiums for compulsory automobile insurance, the overall loss ratio improved by 

0.7 percentage point to 62.4%.
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*  In response to a number of cases 
of improper nonpayment of third-
sector policies, from August 2007, 
underwriting of new third-sector 
policies for individuals was trans-
ferred to NIPPONKOA’s life insur-
ance subsidiary, NIPPONKOA Life 
Insurance Co., Ltd. NIPPONKOA no 
longer handles such policies.
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� Net Losses Paid
Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2009 2008 2009

Amount Change Loss ratio Amount Loss ratio Amount

Nonconsolidated basis (Parent company):
 Fire  ¥ 42,165  ¥  (801) 47.9 %  ¥  42,967 48.8 %  $  429,252 
 Marine 6,908 (903) 42.9 % 7,811 41.8 % 70,325 
 Personal accident 32,363 1,165 66.9 % 31,198 60.8 % 329,471 
 Voluntary automobile 198,511 (8,723) 66.9 % 207,235 68.4 % 2,020,881 
 Compulsory automobile liability 73,597 (1,450) 97.3 % 75,047 78.5 % 749,236 
 Other 47,243 (2,795) 62.7 % 50,038 65.0 % 480,950 

  All lines  ¥400,790  ¥(13,508) 66.7 %  ¥414,298 65.4 %  $4,080,118 

Consolidated basis:
  All lines  ¥406,234  ¥(13,734)  ¥419,969  $4,135,546 

4. Expenses

NIPPONKOA is working to stabilize its earning base by lowering its expense ratio.

 Personnel expenses declined ¥3.7 billion compared to the previous fi scal year, due 

to adoption of a defined contribution pension plan (DC). Non-personnel expenses 

decreased ¥1.7 billion, primarily as the result of a decrease in IT investments and a revision in 

procurement practices.

 Although expenses fell by ¥11.3 billion, the decline in net premiums written caused the 

expense ratio to rise 0.2 percentage point to 35.1%. Thus, both the expense ratio and the loss 

ratio rose. Excluding the effects of the reduction in premiums for compulsory automobile 

insurance, the expense ratio improved by 1.2 percentage points to 36.6%.

� Expenses
Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2009 2008 2009

Amount Change

% of net
premiums

written Amount

% of net
premiums

written Amount

Nonconsolidated basis (Parent company):
 Underwriting costs and expenses:

  Net commissions and brokerage  ¥110,378  ¥ (6,763) 16.9 %  ¥117,141 17.0 %  $1,123,670 
  Operating and administrative

   expenses on underwriting 118,718 (4,631) 18.2 % 123,349 17.9 % 1,208,576 

     Total  ¥229,096  ¥(11,394) 35.1 %  ¥240,491 34.9 %  $2,332,246 

 Company expenses*1:

  Personnel expenses  ¥83,250  ¥ (3,760) 12.7 %  ¥  87,011 12.6 %  $ 847,505 
  Non-personnel expenses 68,757 (1,746) 10.5 % 70,503 10.2 % 699,961 
  Contributions 457 (10) 0.1 % 468 0.1 % 4,658 
  Taxes 7,621 (343) 1.2 % 7,964 1.2 % 77,583 

     Total  ¥160,086  ¥ (5,861) 24.5 %  ¥165,947 24.1 %  $1,629,709 

Consolidated basis:
 Company expenses*1 (Total)  ¥176,934  ¥ (5,247) 26.7 %  ¥182,182 26.1 %  $1,801,228 

*1: Company expenses = Loss adjustment expenses + Operating and administrative expenses
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5. Underwriting Profi t (Parent Company)

As a result of the above, the underwriting balance (net premiums written minus net losses 

paid, less the sum of loss adjustment expenses and underwriting costs and expenses) declined 

¥9.5 billion from the previous fi scal year to a defi cit of ¥11.7 billion. However, excluding the 

effect of the reduction in premiums for compulsory automobile insurance, the underwriting 

balance improved by ¥10.8 billion, showing a profi t of ¥5.4 billion.

 Underwriting profi t was ¥5.4 billion, an improvement of ¥19.4 billion compared to 

the previous fi scal year due to smaller increases in underwriting reserves and reserves for 

outstanding claims.

� Underwriting Balance/Underwriting Profi t Millions of Yen

2009 2008

Amount

% of net
premiums

written Amount

% of net
premiums

written

Nonconsolidated basis (Parent company):
 Net premiums written  ¥653,400 100.0 %  ¥688,892 100.0 %

 Less: Net losses paid & Loss adjustment expenses 436,103 66.7 % 450,670 65.4 %

 Less: Underwriting costs and expenses 229,096 35.1 % 240,491 34.9 %

  Underwriting balance  ¥ (11,799) (1.8)%  ¥   (2,268) (0.3)%

  Underwriting profi t (loss)  ¥   5,445 0.8 %  ¥ (14,042) (2.0)%

�  Underwriting 
Funds as of 
March 31, 2009

Millions of Yen Millions of Yen

Underwriting 
reserves
(total)

Of which
premium reserve

Of which
catastrophe 

reserve

Of which
contingency 

reserve

Reserve for
outstanding 

claims

Amount Change Amount Change Amount Change Amount Change Amount Change

Nonconsolidated basis (Parent company):
 Fire  ¥ 475,818  ¥  5,923  ¥361,237  ¥  (662)  ¥114,580  ¥6,586 ¥— ¥—  ¥ 27,010  ¥(1,798)

 Marine 24,492 (1,152) 5,856 (1,901) 18,636 748 — — 8,579 138 

 Personal accident 54,341 (6,486) 28,679 (1,388) 25,648 (5,095) 13 (3) 22,107 1,111 

 Voluntary automobile 116,312 202 93,954 600 22,357 (398) — — 139,781 1,600 

  Compulsory 
   automobile liability 195,183 (12,528) 195,183 (12,528) — — — — 26,303 (720)

 Other 127,582 1,673 79,206 (1,858) 48,375 3,531 — — 59,245 (2,014)

  All lines  ¥ 993,731 ¥  (12,369)  ¥764,119  ¥(17,738)  ¥229,598  ¥5,372 ¥  13 ¥  (3)  ¥283,027  ¥(1,684)

  Reserve for deposit 
   premiums on 
   savings-type policies 901,338 (115,343)

  Total  ¥1,895,069  ¥(127,712)
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6. Investment Income 

The parent company’s interest and dividend income decreased ¥1.8 billion in fi scal 2008 to 

¥51.1 billion.

 Interest and dividend income on deposit premiums of savings-type policies (to be re-

turned to policyholders upon maturity), decreased ¥2.3 billion. As a result, net interest and 

dividend income (which excludes the portion to be returned) increased ¥0.4 billion year on 

year to ¥26.9 billion (parent company).

� Interest and Dividend Income
Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2009 2008 2009

Amount Change % change Amount Amount

Nonconsolidated basis (Parent company):
 Interest and dividend income  ¥51,124  ¥(1,885) (3.6)%  ¥53,009  $520,453 
 Less: Interest and dividend income 
       on deposit premiums 24,143 (2,342) (8.8)% 26,486 245,790 

  Net interest and dividend income  ¥26,980  ¥   456 1.7 %  ¥26,523  $274,663 

Consolidated basis:
  Interest and dividend income  ¥58,479  ¥(1,152) (1.9)%  ¥59,632  $595,329 

7. Realized Gains/Losses on Securities, and Revaluation Loss on Securities 

Net gain on the sale of securities (sales gains less sales losses) decreased ¥0.8 billion in fi scal 

2008 to ¥22.6 billion. Realized gains, including redemption profi t on securities, were down 

¥2.5 billion from a year earlier to ¥22.2 billion (all fi gures are for the parent company).

 Revaluation loss on securities at the parent company reached ¥35.9 billion, an increase 

of ¥26.3 billion compared to the previous fi scal year (parent company). The primary reason 

for this decline was a sharp fall in market value of domestic equities, as well of foreign and 

domestic investment funds whose asset allocations primarily favored equities, as a result of 

weak stock prices both in Japan and abroad.

� Realized Gains/Losses on Securities
Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2009 2008 2009

Nonconsolidated basis (Parent company):
 Net gain (loss) on sale of securities:

  Domestic bonds  ¥ 2,721  ¥     706  $ 27,701 
  Domestic equities 24,454 22,580 248,951 
  Foreign securities, etc. (4,528) 212 (46,101)

   Total 22,647 23,499 230,551 

 Redemption profi t (loss) on securities (398) 1,335 (4,058)

  Realized gains  ¥22,248  ¥24,834  $226,493 

Consolidated basis:
 Net gain on sale of securities 24,389 24,760 248,294 
 Redemption profi t (loss) on securities (384) 1,330 (3,915)

  Realized gains  ¥24,005  ¥26,090  $244,379 
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� Revaluation Loss on Securities
Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2009 2008 2009

Nonconsolidated basis (Parent company):
 Domestic bonds  ¥       —  ¥      —  $         — 
 Domestic equities 18,520 4,511 188,541 
 Foreign securities, etc. 17,463 5,106 177,777 

  Total  ¥35,983  ¥  9,617  $366,318 

Consolidated basis:
  Total  ¥36,000  ¥  9,654  $366,493 

8. Profi t and Losses 

Profi t and losses for fi scal 2008 are summarized in the table below.

 Ordinary profi t was in the red because of the large revaluation loss on securities during 

the subject fi scal year, but the effects of this were offset by a reversal of the Company’s reserve 

for price fl uctuations.* Net income for the year was in the black.

� Summary of Profi t and Losses
Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2009 2008 2009

Amount Amount Amount

Nonconsolidated basis (Parent company):
 Underwriting:

  Underwriting profi t (loss) (1)  ¥ 5,445 ¥(14,042)  $ 55,436 
  Miscellaneous income (expenses) related to underwriting (2) 711 (372) 7,238 

   Total of underwriting  (1)+(2)=(A) 6,156 (14,415) 62,674 

 Investment, etc.:

  Investment profi t (loss):

   Net interest and dividend income (3a) 26,980 26,523 274,663 
   Net gain on sale of securities (3b) 22,647 23,499 230,551 
   Less:  Revaluation loss on securities (3c) 35,983 9,617 366,318 
   Redemption profi t (loss) on securities (3d) (398) 1,335 (4,058)
   Loss on money held in trust (3e) (4,235) (1,839) (43,119)
   Gain (loss) on derivative fi nancial instruments (3f ) (6,298) 1,239 (64,121)
   Other investment loss*1 (3g) (7,004) (4,634) (71,308)

    Total of the above (3) (4,293) 36,506 (43,711)

 Less:   Investment expenses, etc. (4) 6,054 6,226 61,637 
 Other ordinary income (5) 1,340 903 13,648 

  Total of investments, etc.  (3)-(4)+(5)=(B) (9,007) 31,184 (91,701)

 Ordinary profi t (loss)  (A)+(B) (2,851) 16,769 (29,026)

 Special income (loss) 17,481 (4,256) 177,963 
 Less:  Income taxes, including deferred tax 4,518 4,635 45,995 

 Net income  ¥10,111 ¥   7,877  $102,940 

Consolidated basis:
 Ordinary profi t (loss) (3,043) 17,742 (30,978)
 Net income  ¥ 9,971 ¥   8,991  $101,507 

 *1:  Other investment loss is composed of the following items:
Gain (loss) on foreign exchange - Addition to reserve for investment losses + Other investment profit (loss)

*  Based on the Insurance Business 
Law, the reser ve for pr ice f luc-
tuat ions i s  intende d to enable 
companies to cope with the risk of 
changes in the value of securities. 
This reserve can be reversed when-
ever the gain on sale of securities 
minus the loss on sale of securities 
and revaluation losses result in a 
loss. Provision or reversal of this 
reserve fund is reported as either 
special income or a special loss on 
the income statement.
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9. Financial Base 

In terms of fi nancial base, despite a sharp fall in unrealized gains due to slumping stock 

prices, NIPPONKOA still maintained the soundness of its assets during fi scal 2008, with a 

cumulative unrealized gain on domestic equities of ¥169.4 billion, and an unrealized gain on 

all securities of ¥156.4 billion (all fi gures are for the parent company). 

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Cost
(a)

Value shown
on balance

sheet
(b)

Unrealized
gain

(before tax)
(b – a)

Cost
(a)

Value shown
on balance

sheet
(b)

Unrealized
gain

(before tax)
(b – a)

Nonconsolidated basis (Parent company):
 Domestic bonds  ¥ 860,155  ¥ 868,798  ¥   8,642  $  8,756,548  $  8,844,533  $  87,984 
 Domestic equities 326,251 495,726 169,475 3,321,298 5,046,592 1,725,294 
 Foreign securities, etc. 374,199 352,486 (21,713) 3,809,422 3,588,377 (221,044)

  Total of securities  ¥1,560,606  ¥1,717,011  ¥156,405  $15,887,268  $17,479,503  $1,592,234 

Consolidated basis:
  Total of securities  ¥1,650,608  ¥1,811,256  ¥160,647  $16,803,504  $18,438,931  $1,635,426 

The solvency margin ratio is one of the measures by which regulatory authorities assess the 

fi nancial soundness of insurance companies. A company’s fi nancial position is considered 

adequate if this ratio exceeds 200%. NIPPONKOA has a solvency margin ratio of 711.9%, and 

thus enjoys a very sound fi nancial position.

� Solvency Margin Ratio Millions of Yen

2009

Nonconsolidated basis (Parent company):
 Solvency margin

  Capital or foundation funds etc. 242,517 
  Reserve for price fl uctuations 2,581 
  Contingency reserve 13 
  Catastrophe reserve 278,051 
  Reserve for doubtful accounts (general) 79 
  Unrealized gain or loss on available-for-sale securities (before tax effect deduction) 131,328 
  Unrealized gain or loss on land 21,105 
  Excess refund reserve — 
  Subordinated debts — 
  Deduction items 13,573 
  Other items 75,238 

  A. Total amount of solvency margin  ¥737,341 

 Risks

  Ordinary insurance risks (R1) 41,627 
  Third-sector insurance risks (R2) 1 
  Assumed interest rate risks (R3) 3,234 
  Asset management risks (R4) 76,827 
  Business management risks (R5) 4,678 
  Major catastrophe risks (R6) 112,227 

  B. Total amount of risks:     (R1+R2)2+(R3+R4)2 + R5+R6  ¥207,144 

  Solvency margin ratio: A / (B x 1/2) x 100 711.9 %

�  Unrealized Gain on 
Available-for-Sale 
Securities as of March 31, 
2009
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10. Balance Sheet, Investment Assets

The following is a summary of the nonconsolidated balance sheets.

�  Overview of Balance Sheet
Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2009 2008 2009

Amount Proportion Amount Proportion Amount

Nonconsolidated basis (Parent company):
 Total assets:  ¥2,671,715 100.0 % ¥2,974,225 100.0 %  $27,198,571 

Liabilities:

  Reserve for outstanding claims 283,027 10.6 % 284,711 9.6 % 2,881,271 

  Underwriting reserves:

   Premium reserve 764,119 28.6 % 781,858 26.3 % 7,778,880 
   Catastrophe reserve 229,598 8.6 % 224,225 7.5 % 2,337,358 
   Contingency reserve 13 — 16 — 132 
    Reserve for deposit premiums 

   on savings-type policies 901,338 33.7 % 1,016,682 34.2 % 9,175,928 

    Total (Underwriting reserves) 1,895,069 70.9 % 2,022,782 68.0 % 19,292,168 

  Others 146,289 5.5 % 129,600 4.4 % 1,489,255 

   Total liabilities  ¥2,324,386 87.0 % ¥2,437,094 81.9 %  $23,662,695 

Shareholders’ equity  ¥ 347,329 13.0 % ¥   537,131 18.1 %  $ 3,535,876 

Investment assets, which account for a large percentage of total assets, are presented in the 

following table. NIPPONKOA categorizes investment assets into three categories: Deposit 

Premium Account; General Account (Pure Investment Assets); and General Account 

(Other Assets).
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�  Balance of Assets by 
Investment Category as of 
March 31, 2009

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Deposit 
premium 
account

General account Total Total

Pure 
investment

Other
investment Amount Proportion Amount

Nonconsolidated basis (Parent company):
 Securities:

  Domestic equities ¥       —  ¥ 30,000  ¥571,039 ¥ 601,039 24.9 % $ 6,118,698 

   Yen denominated-securities,
   excluding equities:

   Public and corporate bonds 633,205 286,632 1,514 921,352 38.2 % 9,379,542 

   Others 9,398 44,486 17,173 71,058 2.9 % 723,392 

    Total 642,603 331,118 18,688 992,411 41.1 % 10,102,934 

   Foreign currency
   denominated-securities:

   Public and corporate bonds 6,314 216,699 — 223,014 9.2 % 2,270,328 

   Others — 18,889 13,627 32,516 1.3 % 331,026 

    Total 6,314 235,589 13,627 255,531 10.6 % 2,601,355 

     Total of securities 648,918 596,707 603,355 1,848,982 76.6 % 18,822,988 

 Monetary receivables bought 9,365 31,934 — 41,300 1.7 % 420,450 

 Money in trust — 38,497 50 38,547 1.6 % 392,422 

 Loans 155,537 — 74,157 229,695 9.5 % 2,338,344 

 Bank deposits 17,754 2,452 72,172 92,379 3.8 % 940,440 

  Call loans & receivables under resale 
   agreements 27,996 16,999 — 44,996 1.9 % 458,072 

 Land and buildings — — 116,993 116,993 4.8 % 1,191,021 

 Investments assets (total)  ¥859,572  ¥686,592  ¥866,730  ¥2,412,896 100.0 %  $24,563,740 

 Total assets  ¥2,671,715  $27,198,571 

11. Life Insurance 

NIPPONKOA’s life insurance business was launched in 1996 with the establishment of a 

subsidiary, NIPPONKOA Life Insurance Co., Ltd., which has worked steadily to increase its 

amount of business in force. As a result, business has expanded continually, with the amount 

of business in force for individual insurance at the end of March 2009 up ¥166.9 billion from 

the previous fi scal year to ¥4,014 billion.

 On the other hand, a net loss of ¥0.6 billion in fi scal 2008 was posted. This was due, how-

ever, to a substantial provisioning of policy reserve in order to achieve the standard policy reserve.* 

This goal was achieved during the subject fi scal year and NIPPONKOA’s policy reserves are now 

fully provisioned. Ordinary profi t and net income, excluding the portion of policy reserves 

transferred to the standard policy reserve, were ¥4.9 billion, and ¥4.2 billion, respectively.

 Embedded value increased ¥2.4 billion year on year to ¥85.9 billion.

 Accordingly, the profitability of our life insurance business continues to increase. 

NIPPONKOA will work to further raise profi tability by increasing the amount of business in 

force, with of the aim of the business contributing to consolidated earnings.

*Standard policy reserve:
The standard policy reserve is a 
“standard level” for reserves set 
by the Financial Services Agency 
in Japan considered appropriate 
to maintain the soundness of an 
insurance company and protect 
its polic yholders. The reser ve 
is calculated based on the net 
level premium method using 
prescribed values for expected 
mor t a l i t y  rate and assumed 
interest rate.
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�  Life Insurance Business
Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2009 2008 2009

Amount Change % change Amount Amount

Life insurance subsidiary:
 Amount of business in force at term-end
    Individual insurance, individual annuity  ¥4,014,107  ¥166,907 4.3 % ¥3,847,200  $40,864,377 

 Premium and other receipts 86,948 3,523 4.2 % 83,424 885,150 
 Investment income 9,448 1,541 19.5 % 7,907 96,190 
 Ordinary profi t 112 (1,163) (91.2)% 1,275 1,141 
 Net income (loss) ¥    (619) ¥   (619) (82,697.5)% ¥          — $   (6,301)

�  Embedded Value 
(Life insurance subsidiary)

Billions of Yen
Millions of
U.S. Dollars

2009 2008 Change 2009

 Embedded value:

  Adjusted book value ¥26.4 ¥30.0 ¥(3.5) $268.8 
  Existing business value 59.4 53.6 5.9 604.7 

   Total  ¥85.9  ¥83.5  ¥  2.4  $874.5 

 EV of new business  ¥ 1.3  ¥ 2.9  ¥(1.6)  $ 13.2 

12. Sonpo 24 

The fi nal section in this fi nancial review covers Sonpo 24 Insurance Co., Ltd., NIPPONKOA’s 

strategic subsidiary.

 Acquired by NIPPONKOA in July 2004, Sonpo 24 specializes in direct sales of automobile 

insurance through the telephone or over the Internet. Another feature of Sonpo 24’s busi-

ness is that it attracts customers through intermediary agencies, in addition to television and 

Internet advertising.

 Net premiums written during fi scal 2008 reached ¥8.7 billion, an increase of ¥1.2 billion 

(16.7%) from the previous fi scal year. The loss ratio had been deteriorating due to an increase 

in contracts but improved in fi scal 2008 to 66.4%, (down 6.5 percentage points), and the 

expense ratio also improved, by 10.6 percentage points. As a result, the subsidiary posted a 

net loss of ¥2.7 billion, an improvement of ¥0.6 billion from the previous fi scal year.

 Sonpo 24 has continually run a defi cit since its establishment. However, premium income 

is growing strongly, and we plan to further reduce expenses by overhauling its business 

processes. We anticipate that Sonpo 24 will move into the black in fi scal 2010.

�  Sonpo 24:
Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2009 2008 2009

Amount Change % change Amount Amount

Sonpo 24:
 Net premiums written  ¥  8,703  ¥1,244 16.7 %  ¥  7,458  $  88,603 
 Loss ratio*1 66.4 % (6.5)% (8.9)% 72.9 % 66.4 %
 Expense ratio*2 54.8 % (10.6)% (16.2)% 65.4 % 54.8 %
 Ordinary loss (2,711) 648 (19.3)% (3,360) (27,605)
 Net loss  ¥(2,778)  ¥  616 (18.2)%  ¥(3,394)  $(28,286)

*1: Loss ratio = (Net losses paid + Loss adjustment expenses) / Net premiums written × 100
*2: Expense ratio =  (Operating and administrative expenses on underwriting +

Net commissions and brokerage expenses) / Net premiums written × 100
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This information is required by the amended Japanese disclosure rule to be mentioned in financial reports in Japan.
Matters relating to future developments in this section are based on the Company’s best judgment as of June 26, 2009, when the financial report was submitted to the Ministry of Finance of Japan.

INFORMATION ON RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATED TO OPERATIONS

Of the items contained in this annual report 
pertaining to operating and fi nancial condi-
tions, those that are considered to have an 
important infl uence on investor decision-
making are listed below. The Company is 
aware of these risks and intends to make 
every reasonable effort to avoid exposure 
to them, and shall take appropriate steps to 
deal with any such events should they occur.
 Matters relating to future developments 
in this section are based on the Company’s 
best judgment as of June 26, 2009, when 
the fi nancial report was submitted to the 
Ministry of Finance of Japan.

(1) State of the Japanese economy
Most of the NIPPONKOA Insurance Group’s 
insurance business is based in Japan, and 
with regard to asset management, the 
majority of Group assets is invested in 
Japanese equities, bonds, and loans. 
As a result, the fi nancial condition and 
business performance of the Group will 
be strongly infl uenced by the state of the 
Japanese economy.

(2)  Intensifi ed competition in the non-
life insurance industry

Competition in the non-life insurance indus-
try in Japan has intensifi ed signifi cantly due 
to the effects of wide ranging deregulation. 
These effects include the opening of the 
industry to new competitors and the estab-
lishment of new marketing channels through 
banks and other businesses. In this business 
environment, the fi nancial condition and 
business performance of the NIPPONKOA 
Insurance Group may be affected if it is 
unable to remain competitive or loses a 
signifi cant portion of its market share, etc.

(3)  Downgrading of fi nancial rating
Credit ratings play an important role as 
indicators of the fi nancial stability of an 
insurance company. NIPPONKOA is evaluated 
by credit rating agencies, however these 
agencies may review their ratings on the 
basis not only of our business performance, 
but also the economic environment and 
other factors. If the Company’s fi nancial rat-
ing should be downgraded, this could affect 
the Company’s marketing as well as a variety 
of its other business activities.

(4)  Risk accompanying changes 
in relevant laws, regulations, 
accounting systems, etc.

The NIPPONKOA Insurance Group conducts 
its insurance business under the conditions 
and limitations imposed by the Insurance 
Business Law, regulations imposed by the 
relevant authorities and others, appropriate 
accounting systems, and so on. As a result, 
should these laws, regulations or systems 
change in the future, such changes could 
affect the Group’s business operation, 
business performance, and so on.

(5) Natural disasters
The NIPPONKOA Insurance Group is exposed 
to a heavy potential loss should it incur large 
losses to settle insurance claims for damages 
caused by natural disasters such as earth-
quakes, typhoons, fl oods, etc. The Company 
maintains a catastrophe reserve for such 
eventualities, and also purchases reinsur-
ance coverage to help cover such losses, 
but depending on the scale of the natural 
disaster, the Group’s fi nancial condition and 
business performance could be seriously 
affected by such an event.

(6)  Risk of damages in excesses of 
normal predictions for insurance 
underwriting

The NIPPONKOA Insurance Group maintains 
an insurance contract reserve to cover future 
liabilities, but should events occur that were 
not foreseeable at the time, and generate 
damages that exceed normal predictions, 
the Group’s fi nancial condition and business 
performance could be affected.

(7) Reinsurance risk
The NIPPONKOA Insurance Group works to 
diversify its underwriting risk by means of 
reinsurance; however, rapid changes in the 
insurance and reinsurance markets, sharp 
rises in reinsurance premiums, or other 
factors could make it impossible to obtain 
adequate reinsurance coverage. Moreover, 
the bankruptcy or other failure of one or 
more of our reinsurers could make it impos-
sible to recover part or all of the amount 
being reinsured. Events such as these could 
affect the Company’s fi nancial condition and 
business performance. 

(8) Overseas operations
Overseas insurance markets include inher-
ent insurance risks that do not exist in the 
Japanese market, so the business environ-
ment overseas differs from that in Japan. 
Moreover, the assets held by overseas offi ces 
are affected by the economic conditions 
of the country in which they are located. 
Further, in some countries and regions 
where business operations have been estab-
lished, there may be country risks that could 
hinder business operations, such as political 
or social disorder resulting from terrorism or 
riots, sudden changes in relevant laws and 
regulations, or other risks. 
 It is possible that the Company’s overseas 
operations could suffer unforeseen damages 
as a result of such events, and these 
could affect the NIPPONKOA Insurance 
Group’s fi nancial condition and business 
performance.

(9)  Life insurance and other businesses
The NIPPONKOA Insurance Group is investing 
substantially to establish subsidiaries for a 
life insurance business, mail-order non-life 
insurance, and other operations in Japan. 
The markets in which the Company is devel-
oping these businesses are extremely com-
petitive, with companies that have already 
established solid business foundations. There 
is a possibility that the NIPPONKOA Insurance 
Group will be unable to gain earnings 
as expected.

(10) Risk of stock price volatility
The NIPPONKOA Insurance Group holds 
a large amount of marketable securities 
as assets. Stock markets are subject to 
considerable fl uctuations, and in such cases 
changes in stock prices may have a major 
effect on the Group’s fi nancial condition and 
business performance.

(11) Interest rate risk
Part of the assets of the NIPPONKOA 
Insurance Group consists of bonds and loans. 
When interest rates rise, there is a risk that 
the price of bonds may fall, and when inter-
est rates fall, there is a risk of a decline in 
interest income.
 Moreover, with regard to savings-type 
insurance and life insurance products (prod-
ucts which guarantee the customer a fi xed 
yield), the Company is exposed to a possible 

loss if the actual yield is less than the origi-
nally guaranteed yield. In this way, changes 
in interest rates may have an effect on the 
Group’s business performance.

(12) Liquidity risk
If it should become diffi cult to manage cash 
fl ow due to the occurrence of a major disas-
ter, or if there is a sudden increase in payouts 
as the result of a sharp rise in insurance 
contract cancellations, or if the Company is 
forced to sell assets or raise funds when the 
markets are disrupted or under other adverse 
conditions, the NIPPONKOA Insurance 
Group’s fi nancial condition and business 
performance may be affected.

(13) Credit risk
The NIPPONKOA Insurance Group holds as 
assets equities, bonds, loans, etc. However, 
if the companies that have issued these 
securities and/or bonds, the parties respon-
sible for repayment of those loans should 
go bankrupt, or other events occur, it is 
conceivable that the equities and bonds of 
such companies could fall in value, and that 
collection of principal and interest could 
prove impossible. Such losses could affect 
the Group’s fi nancial condition and 
business performance.

(14)  Risk associated with exchange rate 
fl uctuations

The NIPPONKOA Insurance Group conducts 
business transactions in foreign currencies 
such as U.S. dollars and euros. These trans-
actions generate earnings and expenses, 
as well as assets and liabilities that are 
denominated in foreign currencies. These 
are all exposed to risks associated with 
exchange rate fl uctuations that could 
affect the Group’s fi nancial condition and 
business performance.

(15) Retirement benefi t liabilities
Regarding retirement benefi t liabilities and 
expenses, the NIPPONKOA Insurance Group 
makes estimates of future liabilities over 
the long term, based on forecast values and 
other basic rates. Consequently, changes 
in the business environment or conditions 
underlying the assumptions for those 
forecast values could affect future liabilities, 
and have a major impact on the fi nancial 
position and/or business performance of the 
NIPPONKOA Insurance Group.

(16) Legal risk
The NIPPONKOA Insurance Group, in the 
course of its business operations, is subject 
in Japan to general laws regulating corpo-
rate management, such as the company 
and anti-trust laws, as well as to fi nancial 
laws and regulations such as the Insurance 
Business Law. Overseas, the Company is 
subject to the relevant laws and regulations 
of each country or region. The Company has 
implemented a compliance program and 
utilizes the services of in-house lawyers to 
ensure that it remains in compliance with all 
relevant laws. 
 Nevertheless, in the event of a legal 
dispute arising from failure to comply with 
these laws and regulations, or from other 
causes, there is a possibility that lawsuits 
will be brought against the NIPPONKOA 
Insurance Group, and that depending on 
the extent of that lawsuit, the Group’s 
operational management and/or business 
performance may be affected.

(17) Major disaster risk
There is a possibility that damage resulting 
from natural disasters, industrial disasters 
and other human-caused disasters may 
impair the execution of normal business 
operations of the NIPPONKOA Insurance 
Group. Depending on the extent of such 
damage, the Group’s operational manage-
ment and/or business performance may 
be affected.

(18)  Leaks of customer-related data
The NIPPONKOA Insurance Group handles a 
great deal of customer-related data, includ-
ing both personal and company-related 
information. The Group exercises great care 
by reinforcing the system for managing cus-
tomer information; however, in the unlikely 
event that a signifi cant leak of such data 
should occur, not only would our customers 
suffer serious inconvenience, there is also a 
danger that the Company’s social reputation 
and trust could be seriously damaged. Such 
an event could have a serious impact on the 
Group’s operational management and/or 
business performance.

(19)  Business integration-related risk 
factors

NIPPONKOA and SOMPO JAPAN INSURANCE 
INC. reached a basic agreement on March 13, 
2009 to integrate their business operations 
through establishment of a joint holding 
company pursuant to a joint stock transfer, 
contingent upon approvals of a stockholders’ 
meeting and the relevant regulatory agen-
cies. The target date for completion of the 
business integration is April 2010, and both 
companies are currently making prepara-
tions to meet this goal. However, the follow-
ing types of business integration-related risk 
could conceivably have a serious affect on 
our business operations as well as our fi nan-
cial condition and business results.
•  Risk that we will not receive regulatory 

approval, or that such approval could 
be delayed. 

•  Risk that the business integration will not 
be approved at a general meeting 
of stockholders.

•  Risk that the content of the business 
integration, as specifi ed in the Basic 
Agreement, could change due to various 
circumstances.

•  Risk that the business integration will not 
move forward as planned due to upheavals 
in the fi nancial markets, or a rapid deterio-
ration in the state of the economy.

•  Risk that the synergies generated by the 
business integration may not be as large 
as expected.

(20) Other risks
System breakdowns, clerical or operational 
errors, or employee fraud could become 
obstacles hindering business operations, 
and could cause customers to lose their trust 
and confi dence in the Company, and there 
is a danger that this could produce fi nancial 
losses. Moreover, if such events should 
result in the imposition of administrative 
sanctions by the relevant authorities, there 
is a possibility that business operations or 
performance could be affected.
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CONSOLIDATED Balance Sheets 
NIPPONKOA INSURANCE CO., LTD. and consolidated subsidiaries As of March 31, 2009 and 2008

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars (Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Assets:
Cash and bank deposits (Note 8) ¥  113,074 ¥  104,768 $ 1,151,120 
Call loans 16,043 46,000 163,320 
Receivables under resale agreements 29,996  5,997 305,369 
Receivables under securities borrowing transactions 32,127 — 327,066 
Monetary receivables bought 41,300 23,983 420,450 
Money in trust (Note 3) 74,843 82,662 761,925 
Investments in securities (Notes 1(e), 3 and 8) 2,134,547 2,536,140 21,730,102 
Loans (Note 5) 242,215 225,514 2,465,795 

Tangible fixed assets (Notes 1(h), 7 and 8): 268,965 266,393 2,738,115 
 Less accumulated depreciation 139,037 136,015 1,415,423 
 Tangible fixed assets, net 129,928 130,377 1,322,691 

Other assets 168,893 168,837 1,719,364 
Deferred tax assets  (Notes 1(p) and 10) 108,748 1,203 1,107,083 
Reserve for doubtful accounts (Note 1(j)) (2,195) (2,295) (22,352)
  Total assets ¥3,089,523 ¥3,323,190 $31,451,938 

Liabilities:
 Underwriting fund:

  Outstanding claims (Note 1(k)) ¥  290,239 ¥  292,584 $ 2,954,692 
  Underwriting reserves (Note 1(l)) 2,267,137 2,349,819 23,079,890 

2,557,377 2,642,404 26,034,582 
 Income taxes payable 3,802 4,307 38,707 
 Reserve for retirement benefits (Notes 1(m) and 11) 22,007 36,411 224,040 
 Reserve for price fluctuations (Note 1(o)) 3,060 21,062 31,152 
 Other liabilities (Note 8) 157,625 73,393 1,604,658 
 Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 1(p) and 10) 37 1,972 382 
 Negative goodwill (Note 1(s)) 146 439 1,493 
  Total liabilities ¥2,744,056 ¥2,779,992 $27,935,016 

Net assets: 
 Common stock:

  Authorized 1,500,000,000 shares as of March 31, 2009 and 2008;  
    issued 816,743,118 shares as of March 31, 2009,  

816,743,118 shares as of March 31, 2008 (Note 13) 91,249 91,249 928,933 
 Capital surplus 46,702 46,702 475,435 
 Retained earnings 169,993 165,741 1,730,569 
 Treasury stock:

   64,339,041 shares as of March 31, 2009 and 54,517,315 shares 
 as of March 31, 2008 (Note 13) (58,122) (51,592) (591,701)

  Total shareholders’ equity 249,822 252,099 2,543,237 
 Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities (Note 1(e)) 97,349 289,992 991,041 
 Net deferred gains (losses) on hedge accounting 3,700 1,790 37,668 
 Foreign currency translation adjustment (Note 1(c)) (6,198) (1,492) (63,099)
  Total valuation and translation adjustments 94,851 290,291 965,611 
 Subscription rights to shares (Note 14) 458 408 4,671 
 Minority interests 334 398 3,401 
  Total net assets 345,467 543,198 3,516,921 
  Total liabilities and net assets ¥3,089,523 ¥3,323,190 $31,451,938 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF Income
NIPPONKOA INSURANCE CO., LTD. and consolidated subsidiaries For the years ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars (Note 2)

2009 2008 2007 2009

Operating income:
 Net premiums written ¥663,888 ¥698,685 ¥712,862 $6,758,507 
 Life insurance premiums  63,568  64,158  61,946  647,141 
 Reversal of underwriting reserves (Note 1(l))  81,420  51,363  25,095  828,871 
 Deposit premiums from policyholders  42,425  66,689  82,608  431,896 
 Investment income (Note 6)  58,479  59,632  62,414  595,329 
 Net realized gains on securities  24,005  26,090  47,481  244,379 

933,786 966,620 992,409 9,506,127 
Operating expenses:
 Net losses paid  406,234  419,969  429,284  4,135,546 
 Life insurance losses and other payments  11,816  11,925  9,806  120,293 
 Provision for (reversal of) outstanding claims (Note 1(k))  (1,400)  17,311  24,967  (14,253)
 Loss adjustment expenses  36,107  37,119  36,650  367,581 
 Commissions and brokerage expenses  116,647  122,887  128,190  1,187,490 
 Operating and administrative expenses  140,827  145,062  149,437  1,433,646 
 Maturity refunds to policyholders  176,779  182,773  183,192  1,799,651 
 Dividends to policyholders  8  8  10  89 
 Revaluation loss on securities  36,000  9,654  1,904  366,493 
 Other operating expenses, net  13,807  2,166  832  140,566 

936,829 948,878 964,278 9,537,106 

Ordinary profi t (loss) (3,043) 17,742 28,130 (30,978)

Special items:
 Impairment losses (Note 12)  (489)  (530)  (396)  (4,978)
 Provision for (reversal of) reserve for price fluctuations (Note 1(o))  18,002  (2,690)  (2,659)  183,265 
 Reversal of reserve for doubtful accounts (Note 1(j)) — — — —

Income before income taxes and minority interests 14,307 13,392 23,306 145,649 
Income taxes:

 Current 8,429 9,164 10,309 85,812 
 Deferred (Notes 1(p) and 10) (4,118) (4,809) (2,932) (41,925)
 Total income taxes 4,311 — — 43,886 
Minority interests 24 46 57 254 

 Net income ¥  9 ,971 ¥  8,991 ¥ 15,872 $  101,507 

Yen
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2007 2009

Net income per share (Notes 1(q) and 17):

 Basic ¥13.15 ¥11.63 ¥19.81 $0.133 
 Diluted 13.13 11.62 19.79 0.133 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF Changes in Net Assets
NIPPONKOA INSURANCE CO., LTD. and consolidated subsidiaries For the years ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

Shares

Thousands of common shares

 Balance at March 31, 2006 833,743 

 Changes during this period

  Retirement of treasury stock (7,000)

  Total changes during this period (7,000)

 Balance at March 31, 2007 826,743 

Millions of Yen

Shareholders’ equity
 Common stock

  Balance at March 31, 2006 ¥  91,249 

  Balance at March 31, 2007 91,249 

 Capital surplus reserves

  Balance at March 31, 2006 46,705 

  Changes during this period

   Retirement of treasury stock (5,342)

   Disposal of treasury stock (46)

   Reclassification of negative other capital surplus reserve 5,386 

   Total changes during this period (3)

  Balance at March 31, 2007 46,702 

 Retained earnings

  Balance at March 31, 2006 167,780 

  Changes during this period

   Cash dividends* (6,023)

   Bonuses to directors* (66)

   Net income 15,872 

   Reclassification of negative other capital surplus reserve (5,386)

   Increase in other retained earnings 67 

   Total changes during this period 4,463 

  Balance at March 31, 2007 172,244 

 Treasury stock

  Balance at March 31, 2006 (21,616)

  Changes during this period

   Acquisition of treasury stock (7,092)

   Retirement of treasury stock 5,342 

   Disposal of treasury stock 48 

   Total changes during this period (1,702)

  Balance at March 31, 2007 (23,318)

 Total shareholders’ equity

  Balance at March 31, 2006 284,118 

  Changes during this period

   Cash dividends* (6,023)

   Bonuses to directors* (66)

   Net income 15,872 

   Acquisition of treasury stock (7,092)

   Disposal of treasury stock 1 

   Increase in other retained earnings 67 

   Total changes during this period 2,758 

  Balance at March 31, 2007 286,877 

Shares

Thousands of common shares

 Balance at March 31, 2007 826,743 

 Changes during this period

  Retirement of treasury stock (10,000)

  Total changes during this period (10,000)

 Balance at March 31, 2008 816,743 

Millions of Yen

Shareholders’ equity
 Common stock

  Balance at March 31, 2007 ¥  91,249 

  Balance at March 31, 2008 91,249 

 Capital surplus reserves

  Balance at March 31, 2007 46,702 

  Changes during this period

   Retirement of treasury stock (9,463)

   Disposal of treasury stock (59)

   Reclassification of negative other capital surplus reserve 9,523 

   Total changes during this period —

  Balance at March 31, 2008 46,702 

 Retained earnings

  Balance at March 31, 2007 172,244 

  Changes during this period

   Cash dividends (5,971)

   Net income 8,991 

   Reclassification of negative other capital surplus reserve (9,523)

   Total changes during this period (6,503)

  Balance at March 31, 2008 165,741 

 Treasury stock

  Balance at March 31, 2007 (23,318)

  Changes during this period

   Acquisition of treasury stock (37,854)

   Retirement of treasury stock 9,463 

   Disposal of treasury stock 116 

   Total changes during this period (28,274)

  Balance at March 31, 2008 (51,592)

 Total shareholders’ equity

  Balance at March 31, 2007 286,877 

  Changes during this period

   Cash dividends (5,971)

   Net income 8,991 

   Acquisition of treasury stock (37,854)

   Disposal of treasury stock 57 

   Total changes during this period (34,777)

  Balance at March 31, 2008 252,099 
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Millions of Yen

Valuation and translation adjustments
 Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities

  Balance at March 31, 2006 ¥509,540 

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity (28,828)

   Total changes during this period (28,828)

  Balance at March 31, 2007 480,712 

 Net deferred gains (losses) on hedge accounting

  Balance at March 31, 2006 —

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity 87 

   Total changes during this period 87 

  Balance at March 31, 2007 87 

 Foreign currency translation adjustment

  Balance at March 31, 2006 (2,330)

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity 1,027 

   Total changes during this period 1,027 

  Balance at March 31, 2007 (1,303)

 Total valuation and translation adjustments

  Balance at March 31, 2006 507,209 

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity (27,713)

   Total changes during this period (27,713)

  Balance at March 31, 2007 479,495 

 Subscription rights to shares 

  Balance at March 31, 2006 —

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity 268 

   Total changes during this period 268 

 Balance at March 31, 2007 268 

 Minority interests

  Balance at March 31, 2006 332 

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity 49 

   Total changes during this period 49 

  Balance at March 31, 2007 382 

 Total net assets

  Balance at March 31, 2006 791,660 

  Changes during this period

   Cash dividends* (6,023)

   Bonuses to directors* (66)

   Net income 15,872 

   Acquisition of treasury stock (7,092)

   Disposal of treasury stock 1 

   Increase in other retained earnings 67 

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity (27,395)

   Total changes during this period (24,636)

  Balance at March 31, 2007 ¥767,024 

* This refers to an appropriation of retained earnings proposed at the regular share-
holders’ meeting held in June 2006. 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

Millions of Yen

Valuation and translation adjustments
 Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities

  Balance at March 31, 2007 ¥480,712 

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity (190,719)

   Total changes during this period (190,719)

  Balance at March 31, 2008 289,992 

 Net deferred gains (losses) on hedge accounting

  Balance at March 31, 2007 87 

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity 1,703 

   Total changes during this period 1,703 

  Balance at March 31, 2008 1,790 

 Foreign currency translation adjustment

  Balance at March 31, 2007 (1,303)

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity (188)

   Total changes during this period (188)

  Balance at March 31, 2008 (1,492)

 Total valuation and translation adjustments

  Balance at March 31, 2007 479,495 

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity (189,204)

   Total changes during this period (189,204)

  Balance at March 31, 2008 290,291 

 Subscription rights to shares 

  Balance at March 31, 2007 268 

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity 139 

   Total changes during this period 139 

  Balance at March 31, 2008 408 

 Minority interests

  Balance at March 31, 2007 382 

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity 16 

   Total changes during this period 16 

  Balance at March 31, 2008 398 

 Total net assets

  Balance at March 31, 2007 767,024 

  Changes during this period

   Cash dividends (5,971)

   Net income 8,991 

   Acquisition of treasury stock (37,854)

   Disposal of treasury stock 57 

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity (189,048)

   Total changes during this period (223,825)

  Balance at March 31, 2008 ¥543,198 
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Shares

Thousands of common shares

 Balance at March 31, 2008 816,743 

 Balance at March 31, 2009 816,743 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of

U.S. Dollars (Note 2)

Shareholders’ equity
 Common stock

  Balance at March 31, 2008 ¥  91,249 $   928,933 

  Balance at March 31, 2009 91,249 928,933 
 Capital surplus reserves

  Balance at March 31, 2008 46,702 475,435 

  Changes during this period

   Disposal of treasury stock (126) (1,292)
   Reclassification of negative other capital surplus reserve  126 1,292 
   Total changes during this period — —
  Balance at March 31, 2009 46,702 475,435 
 Retained earnings

  Balance at March 31, 2008 165,741 1,687,279 

  Changes during this period

   Cash dividends (5,716) (58,197)
   Net income 9,971 101,507 
   Reclassification of negative other capital surplus reserve (126) (1,292)
   Effect of changes in accounting policies applied to foreign subsidiaries 124 1,271 
   Total changes during this period 4,252 43,289 
  Balance at March 31, 2009 169,993 1,730,569 
 Treasury stock

  Balance at March 31, 2008 (51,592) (525,223)

  Changes during this period

   Acquisition of treasury stock (6,781) (69,037)
   Disposal of treasury stock 251 2,559 
   Total changes during this period (6,530) (66,478)
  Balance at March 31, 2009 (58,122) (591,701)
 Total shareholders’ equity

  Balance at March 31, 2008 252,099 2,566,425 

  Changes during this period

   Cash dividends (5,716) (58,197)
   Net income 9,971 101,507 
   Acquisition of treasury stock (6,781) (69,037)
   Disposal of treasury stock 124 1,266 
   Effect of changes in accounting policies applied to foreign subsidiaries 124 1,271 
   Total changes during this period (2,277) (23,188)
  Balance at March 31, 2009 249,822 2,543,237 
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Millions of Yen
Thousands of

U.S. Dollars (Note 2)

Valuation and translation adjustments
 Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities

  Balance at March 31, 2008 ¥ 289,992 $ 2,952,183 

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity (192,642) (1,961,141)
   Total changes during this period (192,642) (1,961,141)
  Balance at March 31, 2009 97,349 991,041 
 Net deferred gains (losses) on hedge accounting

  Balance at March 31, 2008 1,790 18,227 

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity 1,909 19,441 
   Total changes during this period 1,909 19,441 
  Balance at March 31, 2009 3,700 37,668 
 Foreign currency translation adjustment

  Balance at March 31, 2008 (1,492) (15,192)

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity (4,705) (47,906)
   Total changes during this period (4,705) (47,906)
  Balance at March 31, 2009 (6,198) (63,099)
 Total valuation and translation adjustments

  Balance at March 31, 2008 290,291 2,955,217 

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity (195,439) (1,989,606)
   Total changes during this period (195,439) (1,989,606)
  Balance at March 31, 2009 94,851 965,611 
 Subscription rights to shares (Note 14)

  Balance at March 31, 2008 408 4,157 

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity 50 514 
   Total changes during this period 50 514 
  Balance at March 31, 2009 458 4,671 
 Minority interests

  Balance at March 31, 2008 398 4,061 

  Changes during this period

   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity (64) (660)
   Total changes during this period (64) (660)
  Balance at March 31, 2009 334 3,401 
 Total net assets

  Balance at March 31, 2008 543,198 5,529,862 

  Changes during this period

   Cash dividends (5,716) (58,197)
   Net income 9,971 101,507 
   Acquisition of treasury stock (6,781) (69,037)
   Disposal of treasury stock 124 1,266 
   Effect of changes in accounting policies applied to foreign subsidiaries 124 1,271 
   Net change of items other than shareholders’ equity (195,453) (1,989,752)
   Total changes during this period (197,731) (2,012,940)
  Balance at March 31, 2009 ¥ 345,467 $ 3,516,921 
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Millions of Yen
Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars (Note 2)

2009 2008 2007 2009

Cash fl ows from operating activities:
 Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interests ¥ 14,307 ¥ 13,392 ¥ 23,306 $  145,649 
  Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) before income taxes to

 net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

  Depreciation 7,007 6,963 7,033 71,335 
  Impairment losses 489 530 396 4,978 
  Increase (decrease) in reserve for retirement benefits (21,577) (2,121) (1,128) (219,660)
  Increase (decrease) in reserve for outstanding claims (1,393) 17,424 24,598 (14,182)
  Increase (decrease) in underwriting reserves (82,440) (52,408) (26,284) (839,258)
  Interest charges 250 165 66 2,550 
  Interest and dividend income (58,479) (59,632) (62,414) (595,329)
  Net loss (gain) on investments and loans 22,850 (13,603) (43,118) 232,625 
  Net loss (gain) on sale of tangible fixed assets 164 45 1,778 1,670 
  Decrease (increase) in other current assets (1,505) 2,942 3,787 (15,330)
  Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities 36 (2,750) (307) 370 
  Other, net (6,887) (585) (7,422) (70,120)
   Sub-total (127,178) (89,635) (79,709) (1,294,701)

  Interest and dividend received 59,564 60,293 65,387 606,377 
  Interest paid (177) (165) (66) (1,803)
  Income taxes paid (8,931) (11,716) 1,102 (90,928)
 Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (76,723) (41,223) (13,286) (781,055)

Cash fl ows from investing activities:
  Net decrease (increase) in short-term investments (819) (1,675) (2,923) (8,344)
  Purchases of monetary receivables bought (990) (4,001) (4,230) (10,088)
  Proceeds from sales or maturity of monetary receivables bought 8,401 7,049 6,766 85,528 
  Increase in money in trust (13,400) (12,000) (10,776) (136,418)
  Decrease in money in trust 14,926 13,585 16,853 151,957 
  Purchases of investments in securities (676,561) (894,425) (784,130) (6,887,523)
  Proceeds from sales or maturity of investments in securities 769,245 936,606 795,494 7,831,067 
  Loans made (74,991) (41,573) (64,047) (763,422)
  Collection of loans 58,252 64,140 105,352 593,025 
  Increase (decrease) in cash received under securities lending transactions 42,308 — (19,461) 430,708 
  Acquisition of tangible fixed assets (7,835) (8,935) (4,952) (79,771)
  Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets 778 1,849 2,765 7,924 
   Sale of shares in a subsidiary that accompany changes 

 in the scope of consolidation — 2,517 — —
  Other, net (43) 0 0 (437)
 Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 119,271 63,135 36,710 1,214,205 

Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities:
  Dividends paid (5,716) (5,971) (6,023) (58,197)
  Treasury stock acquired (6,781) (37,854) (7,092) (69,037)
  Sales of treasury stock 124 57 1 1,266 
  Dividends paid to minority interests (12) (13) (8) (131)
  Other, net (162) (150) (144) (1,651)
 Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (12,548) (43,932) (13,268) (127,750)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (2,298) (816) 772 (23,399)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 27,700 (22,836) 10,927 281,999 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 140,825 163,661 152,733 1,433,625 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Notes 1(d) and 16) ¥168,525 ¥140,825 ¥163,661 $1,715,625 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF Cash Flows
NIPPONKOA INSURANCE CO., LTD. and consolidated subsidiaries For the years ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
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NOTES to Consolidated Financial Statements
NIPPONKOA INSURANCE CO., LTD.

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of Presenting Consolidated Financial Statements
NIPPONKOA Insurance Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) and its consolidated 

domestic subsidiaries maintain their accounting records and prepare their 

financial statements using generally accepted statutory accounting princi-

ples and practices applicable to insurance companies in Japan. Accounting 

principles and practices for consolidated foreign subsidiaries conform to 

International Financial Reporting Standards. (Effective from the current 

consolidated fiscal year, the Company has adopted Practical Solution 

on Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for 

Consolidated Financial Statements (ASBJ PITF No. 18). As a result, the 

Company made the necessary revisions in the settlement of accounts for 

the consolidated financial statements. The effect of this change on ordi-

nary loss and income before income taxes and minority interests is imma-

terial.) The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been 

prepared by the Company as required by the Financial Instruments and 

Exchange Act, and accounting principles and practices generally accepted 

in Japan, which are different in certain respects as to application and dis-

closure requirements from International Financial Reporting Standards.

Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements are not 

intended to present the financial position, results of operations and cash 

flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally 

accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Japan.

In addition, the accompanying consolidated financial statements incorpo-

rate certain reclassifications and rearrangements in order to present them 

in a form that is more familiar to readers outside Japan.

As permitted by the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act in Japan, 

amounts of less than one million yen have been omitted. Accordingly, 

the totals in yen do not necessarily agree with the sum of the individual 

amounts.

(b) Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include accounts of the Company 

and its significant subsidiaries (collectively “the Companies”). Consolidated 

foreign subsidiaries are included on the basis of fiscal years ending on 

December 31, since the difference in the fiscal year ends does not exceed 

three months. As for major transactions occurring between the fiscal year 

ends of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries and the Company, necessary 

adjustments are made upon consolidation.

The consolidated subsidiaries of the Company are NIPPONKOA Life 

Insurance Company Limited, SONPO24 Insurance Company Limited, Nippon 

Insurance Company of Europe Limited, NIPPONKOA Insurance Company 

(Europe) Limited, NIPPONKOA Insurance Company (Asia) Limited and 

NIPPONKOA Management Services (Europe) Limited. 

All other subsidiaries of the Company are not consolidated as their total 

assets, sales, net income and retained earnings in the aggregate are 

considered immaterial.

The equity method of accounting for investments in common shares of 

17 non-consolidated subsidiaries and 4 affiliates has not been applied 

because net income and retained earnings in the aggregate are 

considered immaterial.

(c) Foreign Currency Translation
1) Foreign currency accounts:

The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries translate short-

term and long-term receivables and payables denominated in foreign 

currencies into Japanese yen at the exchange rate as of each balance sheet 

date. The foreign exchange gains and losses from translation are credited 

or charged to the statements of income to the extent that they are not 

hedged by forward foreign exchange contracts.

All revenues and expenses associated with foreign currencies are trans-

lated at the rates of exchange prevailing when such transactions are made. 

The resulting exchange gains or losses are credited or charged to the 

statements of income.

2) Foreign currency financial statements of consolidated subsidiaries:

The balance sheet accounts of foreign subsidiaries are translated into 

Japanese yen at the exchange rate as of each balance sheet date except 

for shareholders’ equity, which is translated at historical exchange rates. 

All revenue and expense accounts of foreign consolidated subsidiaries are 

translated into Japanese yen at the year-end exchange rate. Differences 

arising from such translation are shown in a separate component of 

net assets.

(d) Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows are short-

term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months 

or less, and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

(e) Investments in Securities
Accounting standards and methods for valuation of investments in securi-

ties held by the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries are 

as follows:

i) Held-to-maturity bonds are carried at amortized cost. 

ii)  Underwriting reserves bonds are carried at amortized cost determined 

by the moving-average method in accordance with “Temporary 

Treatment of Accounting and Auditing Concerning Underwriting 

Reserves Bonds in the Insurance Industry” (Japanese Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants Industry Audit Practice Committee Report 

No. 21).

  An outline of the risk management policy in relation to 

underwriting reserves bonds is as follows:

  NIPPONKOA Life Insurance Company Limited sets up “policy reserve 

for single-premium whole-life” as a sub-category, and follows the 

management policy to match the duration of the policy reserves in 

the sub-category with the duration of underwriting reserves bonds 

corresponding to this sub-category within a certain range, to better 

manage the changes in the interest rate risk associated with the assets 

and liabilities.

iii)  Stocks of subsidiaries and affiliates are carried at cost determined by 

the moving-average method. 

iv)  Marketable securities classified as available-for-sale are recorded 

according to their mark-to-market values based on the prices prevailing 

in the market on the balance sheet date. The unrealized gains or losses, 

net of tax, on the available-for-sale securities are recognized as a com-

ponent of net assets. Cost for sale is calculated by the moving-average 

method.
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v)  Non-marketable securities classified as available-for-sale are recorded 

at cost determined by the moving-average method or the amortized 

cost method.

Valuations of securities included in money in trust are as follows:

i)  Securities included in individually managed money in trust are valued 

by the market value method.

ii)  Securities included in individually managed money in trust not classi-

fied as trading securities or held-to-maturity securities are valued by 

the same method as available-for-sale securities.

(f) Derivatives
Derivative transactions outstanding are accounted for by the market 

value method.

(g) Hedge Accounting
The deferral hedge accounting method is applied to hedging transactions 

for interest rate swaps to hedge cash flow fluctuation risk of bonds and 

loans with variable interest rates and interest rate fluctuation risk related 

to long-term insurance contracts based on “The Accounting and Auditing 

Treatment on the Application of the Financial Products Accounting Standard to 

the Insurance Industry” (Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

Industry Audit Practice Committee Report No. 26, hereafter Industry Audit 

Practice Committee Report No. 26). Where certain transactions fulfill the 

required conditions for the application of the exceptional treatment for 

interest rate swaps, this treatment is applied to such transactions.

The fair value hedge accounting method is applied to foreign exchange 

forward contracts and currency option transactions in order to reduce the 

risk of foreign exchange rate fluctuation on foreign currency denominated 

assets. Where certain transactions fulfill the required conditions for the 

application of assignment accounting, this accounting is applied to such 

transactions. 

Hedge effectiveness is judged by comparing the accumulated fluctuation 

of the market value or cash flows between each hedged item and the 

related hedging instrument for the period from the commencement of the 

hedge to the date of judgment. However, if the material conditions of the 

hedging instrument and the hedged item are the same and there is 

high effectiveness for each hedge transaction, the judgment for the 

effectiveness is omitted.

As for hedge effectiveness based on Industry Audit Practice Committee 

Report No. 26, this is judged by monitoring the circumstance of the inter-

est rate which effects the calculation of theoretical prices of both insur-

ance debt as hedged item and interest rate swap as hedging instrument 

grouped by the remaining period.

(h) Tangible Fixed Assets (Excluding Leased Assets)
Tangible fixed assets (excluding leased assets) are primarily recorded at 

cost less accumulated depreciation. The Company and its domestic consol-

idated subsidiaries compute depreciation of tangible fixed assets (exclud-

ing leased assets) by the declining-balance method based on estimated 

useful lives. The Company adopted the straight-line method to depreciate 

buildings (excluding their attached facilities) acquired on and after April 

1, 1998. The foreign subsidiaries of the Company compute depreciation of 

tangible fixed assets (excluding leased assets) by the straight-line method.

(i) Leases
Finance leases, other than those that are deemed to transfer the owner-

ship of the leased assets to the lessees, those for which lease transactions 

took effect during a fiscal year that began prior to April 1, 2008, are 

accounted for by a method similar to the procedures used for ordinary 

operating leases.

(Changes in Accounting Procedures)

Although finance leases other than those that are deemed to transfer 

the ownership of the leased assets to the lessees had been accounted 

for by a method similar to the procedures used for ordinary operating 

leases, “Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions (ASBJ Statement on 

Accounting Standard No. 13),” and “Guidance on Accounting Standard 

for Lease Transactions (ASBJ Implementation Guidance on Accounting 

Standard No. 16)” became applicable regarding the financial statements 

for the current fiscal year, thereby applying the same accounting treat-

ment for lease transactions as that for regular purchase/sale transactions 

beginning with transactions that take effect during the current fiscal year. 

Compared with the previous method of accounting, the effect of this 

change on ordinary profit and income before income taxes is immaterial.

(j) Reserve for Doubtful Accounts
Reserve for doubtful accounts of the Company and its domestic consoli-

dated subsidiaries is provided under the application of the standards for 

asset self-assessment and the standards for write-offs and provisions 

as follows:

For loans to borrowers that are bankrupt, under special liquidation pro-

cedures, barred from bill clearing transactions, or that are otherwise in a 

state of legal or virtual bankruptcy, a reserve is provided in the amount 

equivalent to such loans net of the expected realizable collateral value 

and the estimated recoverable guarantee value.

For loans to borrowers that are found to be facing a material risk of going 

into bankruptcy in the future, a reserve is provided in the amount equiva-

lent to such loans net of the expected realizable collateral value and the 

estimated recoverable guarantee value, with further adjustments made as 

deemed necessary under consideration of such borrowers’ overall repay-

ment capabilities.

For all other loans, a reserve is provided based on the actual default ratios 

derived from the defaults observed during certain past periods.

Furthermore, the divisions in charge of respective portfolios of assets 

evaluate the entire loan portfolio according to the standards for asset 

self-assessment, and the internal independent inspection department 

audits the results of the divisional assessments. The provisions made as 

described above are based on those audit findings.

(k) Outstanding Claims
In accordance with the regulations of the Insurance Business Law in Japan, 

the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries have established 

a reserve for outstanding claims in amounts estimated to be sufficient, in 

the opinion of management, to discharge claims incurred and reported, 

and also have a provision for losses incurred but not reported at the 

balance sheet date.
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(l) Underwriting Reserves
Non-life insurance

Pursuant to the provisions of the Insurance Business Law and related rules 

and regulations in Japan, the Company and SONPO24 Insurance Company 

Limited are required to maintain underwriting reserves in amounts 

determined as follows:

1) Premium reserve

Insurance other than compulsory automobile liability insurance and 

earthquake insurance

The greater of the unearned premiums or the underwriting balance at 

the end of the year for policies written during the year, for each line of 

insurance and type of policy.

Compulsory automobile liability insurance

Accumulated total sum of premiums written less claims incurred plus 

related net investment income less contributions to the Japan Red Cross 

Society and other Japanese institutions. Insurance companies are not 

permitted to recognize any profit or loss from underwriting compulsory 

automobile liability insurance.

Earthquake insurance

Accumulated total amounts of the underwriting balance and related net 

investment income.

In addition to the above, in order to provide for any extraordinary risks 

which might arise from a catastrophe, the Company is required to 

maintain a contingency reserve, at an amount determined based on net 

premiums written, that varies by line of insurance.

2) Deposits by policyholders

The Company maintains reserves for the deposit portion of premiums, 

and investment income on such portion, both of which are refundable to 

policyholders under the contract.

Life insurance

Pursuant to the provisions of the Insurance Business Law and related rules 

and regulations in Japan, NIPPONKOA Life Insurance Company Limited is 

required to maintain premium reserves in amounts determined on the 

basis of future policy benefits for life insurance contracts. These premium 

reserves are calculated pursuant to the five-year zillmerized reserve 

method and the net level premium reserve method.

(m) Reserve for Retirement Benefits
Reserve for retirement benefits of the Company and its domestic consoli-

dated subsidiaries is provided on the basis of estimated amounts of retire-

ment benefit obligation and plan assets at the balance sheet date.

Prior service cost is amortized by the straight-line method for a certain 

period (10 years) which shall not exceed the average remaining period of 

employees’ service.

Any actuarial difference incurred in each year is amortized from 

the following year by the straight-line method for a certain period 

(10 years) which shall not exceed the average remaining period of 

employees’ service.

(Additional Information)

In January 2008, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries decided to 

transfer part of the retirement benefit plans to the defined contribution 

pension plan as of April 2008 and applied the “Accounting for Transfer 

between Retirement Benefit Plans (ASBJ Implementation Guideline on 

Accounting Standard No. 1).” As a result of partial termination of the 

schemes due to the transfers, the Company posted ¥1,085 million as 

special loss, which applied for the year ended March 31, 2008.

(Change of presentation)

The amount required by the internal corporate policy for retirement ben-

efits to directors and corporate auditors, which had been included in the 

reserve for retirement benefits, is included in other liabilities from the 

previous fiscal year in accordance with the publication of “Audit Treatment 

for Reserves of Special Taxation Measures Law, and Allowances or Reserves 

of Special Law (JICPA Audit and Assurance Practice Committee Report 

No. 42).”

(n) Accounting Standard for Bonuses to Directors
Effective from fiscal year 2006, “Accounting Standard for Directors’ Bonus” 

(ASBJ Statement No. 4) was applied. As a result, ordinary profit and 

income before income taxes during the year ended March 31, 2007 were 

lower by ¥46 million, than would have been the case had the previous 

method had been applied.

(o) Reserve for Price Fluctuations
In accordance with Article 115 of the Insurance Business Law in Japan, 

the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries must set aside a 

reserve, of an amount calculated at rates varying according to the kind of 

asset, unless permission is granted by the Commissioner of the Financial 

Services Agency, for possible loss from price fluctuation of certain assets. 

Additionally, the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries may 

reduce this reserve for net losses resulting from reappraisals and sales of 

designated assets or from other investment activities, and if permission 

is granted by the Commissioner of the Financial Services Agency, for any 

other reason.

(p) Income Tax
The provision for income tax in the consolidated statements of income is 

computed based on income before income taxes and minority interests. 

The asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets 

and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary dif-

ferences between the financial reporting assets and liabilities and the tax 

bases of these. These deferred taxes are measured by applying currently 

enacted tax rates to the temporary differences.

(q) Earning per Share of Common Stock
Basic and diluted net income per share is computed based on the weight-

ed average number of shares of common stock outstanding during each 

fiscal year. 

Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that could 

occur if outstanding stock options were exercised. 
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(r)  Valuation of Assets and Liabilities of Consolidated 
Subsidiaries on Acquisition

All of the consolidated subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities were valued at 

fair value as of the respective acquisition dates.

(s) Amortization of Goodwill
The difference between cost and fair value of net assets acquired for 

SONPO24 Insurance Company Limited is amortized over 5 years by the 

straight-line method and the difference for other subsidiaries is charged 

or credited to the statements of income in the year of acquisition.

(t)  Accounting Standard for Share-Based Payment
Effective from fiscal year 2006, “Accounting Standard for Share-Based 

Payment” (ASBJ Statement No. 8) and “Guidance on Accounting Standard 

for Share-Based Payment” (ASBJ Guidance No. 11) were applied. As a 

result, ordinary profit and income before income taxes during the year 

ended March 31, 2007 were lower by ¥268 million than would have been 

the case had the previous method had been applied.

2. U.S. DOLLAR AMOUNTS
The translations of Japanese Yen amounts into U.S. Dollar amounts are 

included solely for convenience and have been made, as a matter of 

arithmetical computation only, at ¥98.23=US$1, the approximate rate 

prevailing at March 31, 2009. The translations should not be construed as 

representations that the Japanese Yen have been or could be readily 

converted, realized or settled in U.S. Dollars at that or any other rate.

3. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
1)  The components of investments in securities as of March 31, 2009 and 

2008 are summarized as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Domestic securities:

 Bonds ¥1,199,431 ¥1,306,410 $12,210,435 

 Stocks 559,381 818,482 5,694,612 

Foreign securities 350,921 378,948 3,572,448 

Other securities 24,813 32,299 252,607 

 Total ¥2,134,547 ¥2,536,140 $21,730,102 

Securities carried at ¥76,330 million ($777,055 thousand) and ¥88,326 

million as of March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, were on loan under 

securities lending agreements.

Of the securities received by the Company through securities borrowing 

transactions those for which the Company and its domestic consolidated 

subsidiaries hold a right to dispose of them by sale or use as collateral 

at their discretion amounts to ¥33,795 million ($344,041 thousand) as 

of March 31, 2009, which the Company and its domestic consolidated 

subsidiaries entirely own.

Shareholding amounts for non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates 

were ¥2,320 million ($23,628 thousand) and ¥2,320 million as of March 

31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Information regarding each category of the securities classified as held-to-

maturity, underwriting reserves and available-for-sale whose fair value is 

readily determinable as of March 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:
Millions of Yen

March 31, 2009 Cost
Unrealized

gains
Unrealized

losses
Fair

value

Securities classified as:

 Held-to-maturity:

  Bonds ¥  239,834 ¥ 10,358 ¥ 3,430 ¥  246,762 

  Foreign securities — — — —

 Underwriting reserves:

  Bonds 4,534 154 — 4,689 

  Foreign securities — — — —

 Available-for-sale*:

  Bonds 942,572 14,957 3,966 953,562 

  Stocks 329,136 179,240 7,808 500,568 

  Foreign securities 360,446 6,256 27,524 339,179 

  Other securities** 18,452 12 519 17,946 

 Total ¥1,894,976 ¥210,979 ¥43,248 ¥2,062,707 

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2008 Cost
Unrealized

gains
Unrealized

losses
Fair

value

Securities classified as:

 Held-to-maturity:

  Bonds ¥  178,283 ¥  1,956 ¥ 5,812 ¥  174,426 

  Foreign securities — — — —

 Underwriting reserves:

  Bonds 1,523 6 — 1,530 

  Foreign securities — — — —

 Available-for-sale*:

  Bonds 1,108,371 17,964 1,732 1,124,603 

  Stocks 363,206 436,378 2,660 796,924 

  Foreign securities 341,600 12,051 13,468 340,182 

  Other securities** 29,169 23 2,294 26,898 

 Total ¥2,022,155 ¥468,380 ¥25,968 ¥2,464,566 

Thousand of U.S. Dollars (Note 2)

March 31, 2009 Cost
Unrealized

gains
Unrealized

losses
Fair

value

Securities classified as:

 Held-to-maturity:

  Bonds $ 2,441,561 $  105,450 $ 34,921 $ 2,512,090 

  Foreign securities — — — —

 Underwriting reserves:

  Bonds 46,157 1,577 — 47,734 

  Foreign securities — — — —

 Available-for-sale*:

  Bonds 9,595,562 152,265 40,382 9,707,445 

  Stocks 3,350,673 1,824,701 79,490 5,095,884 

  Foreign securities 3,669,416 63,689 280,200 3,452,906 

  Other securities** 187,851 127 5,284 182,694 

 Total $19,291,223 $2,147,811 $440,278 $20,998,756 

*  The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries recognized impairment on securi-

ties classif ied as available-for-sale whose fair value is readily determinable as of the balance 

sheet date if the fair value declined by 30% or more from cost for the years ended March 31, 

2009 and 2008.

  Impairments recognized in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended 

March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were ¥35,784 million ($364,296 thousand), ¥9,302 million 

and ¥1,238 million, respectively.

** Debts purchased classif ied as monetary receivables bought on the consolidated balance 

sheets are included.
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Available-for-sale securities whose fair value is not readily determinable as 

of March 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Available-for-sale:

 Bonds ¥  1,500 ¥  2,000 $   15,270 

 Stocks 57,753 20,498 587,945 

 Foreign securities 10,480 37,503 106,696 

 Other securities* 61,838 44,105 629,526 

 Total ¥131,573 ¥104,107 $1,339,438 

*  Certif icates of deposit classif ied as cash and bank deposit on the consolidated balance sheets 

and commercial paper classif ied as monetary receivables bought on the consolidated balance 

sheets are included.

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities for the years ended 

March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were ¥340,677 million ($3,468,164 

thousand), ¥273,756 million and ¥382,328 million, respectively. Gross 

realized gains and losses on these sales, computed on the moving-average 

cost basis, were ¥33,215 million ($338,137 thousand) and ¥8,835 million 

($89,944 thousand), respectively, for the year ended March 31, 2009. 

Those for the year ended March 31, 2008 were ¥28,268 million and ¥3,619 

million, respectively. For the year ended March 31, 2007, they amounted to 

¥49,586 million and ¥2,525 million, respectively.

The carrying value of debt securities by contractual maturity for securi-

ties classified as available-for-sale, held-to-maturity and underwriting 

reserves as of March 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
 U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Due in one year or less ¥  208,726 ¥  297,864 $ 2,124,875 

Due after one year through five years 539,397 578,715 5,491,169 

Due after five years through ten years 342,217 416,642 3,483,839 

Due after ten years 494,550 402,075 5,034,614 

 Total ¥1,584,891 ¥1,695,297 $16,134,499 

*  Certif icates of deposit classif ied as cash and bank deposit on the consolidated balance sheets 

and debts purchased and commercial paper classif ied as monetary receivables bought on the 

consolidated balance sheets are included.

2)  The amount of money in trust for trading purposes as of March 31, 

2009 and 2008 was ¥37,647 million ($383,255 thousand) and ¥44,996 

million, respectively. Net unrealized loss charged to income for the year 

ended March 31, 2009 was ¥5,551 million ($56,512 thousand). Net 

unrealized losses charged to income for the year ended March 31, 2008 

and 2007 were ¥2,537 million and ¥1,251 million, respectively. The 

amount of money in trust held as neither trading nor held-to-maturity 

as of March 31, 2009 and 2008 was ¥37,196 million ($378,670 thou-

sand) with net unrealized loss of ¥703 million ($7,163 thousand) and 

¥37,665 million with net unrealized gain of ¥87 million, respectively.

4. DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING
The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts, currency 

option contracts, currency swaps, interest rate swaps, bond futures, bond 

option, stock index futures, independent stock options, credit derivatives, 

weather derivatives and earthquake derivatives. The domestic consolidated 

subsidiaries of the Company do not enter into derivative contracts. The 

consolidated foreign subsidiaries enter into forward foreign 

exchange contracts.

The Companies utilize derivative financial instruments to hedge their 

exposure to market risks arising from fluctuations in prices, foreign 

exchange rates and interest rates.

The Company also utilizes derivatives for trading purposes, for which 

transactions are strictly controlled from a risk management perspective.

In the following schedules of derivative transactions, “Contracted amount” 

represents the notional principal amount, not the amount affected by 

market and/or credit risks.

(a)  Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts
There were no forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding as of 

March 31, 2009.

Forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding as of March 31, 2008 are 

summarized as follows:
Millions of Yen

March 31, 2008
Contracted

amount

Current value 
of contracted 

amount/
fair value

Net
unrealized
gain (loss)

Forward foreign exchange contracts*:

 Short positions:

  US$ ¥19,998 ¥19,604 ¥394 

  EUR 805 790 14 

 Long positions:

  EUR 315 316 0 

  Total ¥409 

*  Forward foreign exchange transactions that qualify for hedge accounting because of high cor-

relation and effectiveness between the hedging instruments and hedged items are excluded 

from the above tables.

(b) Interest Rate Swap Agreements
Interest rate swap agreements outstanding as of March 31, 2009 and 2008 

are summarized as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

March 31, 2009
Contracted

amount Fair value

Net
unrealized
gain (loss)

Net
unrealized
gain (loss)

Interest rate swap agreements*:

 Receive fixed rate, pay 
   floating rate ¥15,000 ¥100 ¥100 $1,027 

  Total ¥100 $1,027 

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2008
Contracted

amount Fair value

Net
unrealized
gain (loss)

Interest rate swap agreements*:

 Receive fixed rate, pay 
   floating rate ¥148,000 ¥29 ¥29 

  Total ¥29 

*  Interest rate swap agreements that qualify for hedge accounting because of high correlation 

and effectiveness between the hedging instruments and hedged items are excluded from the 

above tables.
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(c) Credit Derivatives
Credit derivatives outstanding as of March 31, 2009 and 2008 are summa-

rized as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

March 31, 2009
Contracted

amount Fair value

Net
unrealized
gain (loss)

Net
unrealized
gain (loss)

Credit derivatives

 Short positions: ¥7,000 ¥(398) ¥(398) $(4,059)

 Long positions: 3,438 928 928 9,453 

  Total ¥ 529 $ 5,393 

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2008
Contracted

amount Fair value

Net
unrealized
gain (loss)

Credit derivatives

 Short positions: ¥13,000 ¥(26) ¥(26)

  Total ¥(26)

5. LOANS
Loans include “Loans to bankrupt borrowers” and “Delinquent/overdue loans” 

on which accrued interest income has not been recognized. Loans also include 

“Delinquent/overdue loans for three months or more” in addition to the 

aforementioned loans.

Additionally, loans include “Restructured loans”, which have been restructured to 

facilitate the restructuring of, or assist the borrowers, by reducing the interest or 

providing a grace period for the payment of principal/interest, etc. The balances of 

the loan categories described above as of March 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Loans to bankrupt borrowers ¥   11 ¥   26 $   112 

Delinquent/overdue loans 1,695 2,254 17,255 

Delinquent/overdue loans for 
 three months or more — 2 —

Restructured loans 191 252 1,946 

 Total ¥1,897 ¥2,536 $19,315 

6. INVESTMENT INCOME
Investment income for the years ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 is 

summarized as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2007 2009

Investment income ¥58,479 ¥59,632 ¥62,414 $595,329 

Less investment income 
  on deposit premiums from

policyholders, etc. 24,155 26,498 27,418 245,902 

 Net investment income ¥34,324 ¥33,133 ¥34,996 $349,426 

7. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Advanced depreciation of tangible fixed assets at March 31, 2009 and 

2008 amounted to ¥19,039 million ($193,823 thousand) and ¥19,074 mil-

lion, respectively.

The components of tangible fixed assets as of March 31, 2009 and 2008 

are summarized as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Land ¥  68,165 ¥  68,544 $   693,933 

Buildings 159,424 158,005 1,622,975 

Leased assets 58 — 592 

Construction in progress 5,394 2,788 54,916 

Other tangible fixed assets 35,922 37,055 365,696 

 Sub-total 268,965 266,393 2,738,115 

Less accumulated depreciation 139,037 136,015 1,415,423 

 Total ¥129,928 ¥130,377 $1,322,691 

8. COLLATERAL
Assets pledged as collateral as of March 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows: 

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Cash and bank deposits ¥   294 ¥   496 $  2,994 

Securities 7,876 5,611 80,183 

Tangible fixed assets 4,762 4,878 48,487 

 Total ¥12,933 ¥10,987 $131,665 

The Company had obligations from loans secured by collateral in the amount 

of ¥1,740 million ($17,721 thousand) as of March 31, 2009 and ¥1,947 million 

as of March 31, 2008, respectively, included in “Other liabilities.”

9. LEASES

1) Finance Leases
Information on finance leases, other than those that are deemed to trans-

fer the ownership of the leased assets to the lessees, which are accounted 

for by a method similar to the procedures used for ordinary operating leases.

(a)  Acquisition Cost, Accumulated Depreciation and Net Book 
Value of Movable Property

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Acquisition cost ¥1,009 ¥1,374 $10,277 

Accumulated depreciation 735 812 7,490 

 Net book value ¥  273 ¥  561 $ 2,786 
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(b) Future Minimum Lease Payments

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Within one year ¥229 ¥287 $2,336 

Over one year 44 273 450 

 Total ¥273 ¥561 $2,786 

(c) Lease Expense
Lease expense (the amount corresponding to depreciation expense) for 

the years ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 amounted to ¥287 mil-

lion ($2,929 thousand), ¥332 million and ¥370 million, respectively.

(d) Computation of Depreciation Expense 
Depreciation expense is computed by the straight-line method over a 

period up to the length of the relevant lease contract with no residual value. 

The figures shown in this note include the portion of interest thereon.

2) Operating Leases
Information on future minimum lease payments for non-cancellable 

operating leases.

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2009

Within one year ¥141 $1,439 

Over one year 282 2,875 

 Total ¥423 $4,315 

10. INCOME TAXES
1)  The components of the net deferred tax assets and liabilities as of 

March 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

March 31, 2009 Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

Deferred tax assets:

 Underwriting reserves ¥102,256 $1,04 0,991 

 Revaluation loss on securities 19,347 196,957 

 Outstanding claims 17,130 174,393 

 Software 11,542 117,502 

 Tax loss carry forward 8,012 81,571 

 Other 30,729 312,835 

  Sub-total 189,019 1,924,251 

 Valuation allowance (22,691) (231,000)

  Total 166,328 1,693,251 

Deferred tax liabilities:

  Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securi-
ties and monetary receivables bought (52,109) (530,481)

 Other (5,507) (56,068)

  Total (57,616) (586,550)

Deferred tax assets (liabilities), net ¥108,711 $1,106,700 

March 31, 2008 Millions of Yen

Deferred tax assets:

 Underwriting reserves ¥ 95,011 

 Outstanding claims 17,231 

 Reserve for retirement benefits 13,144 

 Software 12,540 

 Revaluation loss on securities 12,404 

 Other 38,242 

  Sub-total 188,575 

 Valuation allowance (28,067)

  Total 160,507 

Deferred tax liabilities:

  Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 
 and monetary receivables bought (158,573)

 Other (2,703)

  Total (161,277)

Deferred tax assets (liabilities), net ¥  (769)

2)  The breakdown of the reconciliation between statutory tax rate and 

effective tax rate after application of tax effect for the years ended 

March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:
2009

Statutory tax rate in Japan 36.1% 

Adjustments:

 Non-taxable revenue including dividends received (19.0)

 Loss of subsidiary company which does not have a tax effect 7.0 

  Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes such as 
 entertainment allowance 2.8 

 Valuation allowance 2.3 

 Others 0.9 

Effective tax rate after application of tax effect 30.1% 

2008

Statutory tax rate in Japan 36.1% 

Adjustments:

 Non-taxable revenue including dividends received (19.8)

 Loss of subsidiary company which does not have a tax effect 9.2 

  Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes such as 
 entertainment allowance 3.1 

 Inhabitants’ per capita taxes 2.0 

 Valuation allowance 1.4 

 Others 0.5 

Effective tax rate after application of tax effect 32.5% 

2007

Statutory tax rate in Japan 36.1% 

Adjustments:

 Non-taxable revenue including dividends received (10.2)

 Loss of subsidiary company which does not have a tax effect 4.6 

 Others 1.2 

Effective tax rate after application of tax effect 31.7% 
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11. RETIREMENT PLAN

(a) Overview
In addition to the defined contribution pension plan, the Company 

provides a defined benefit plan with a lump-sum payment for retiring 

employees. It also provides a corporate pension plan (Contract-type) and 

an in-house retirement pension plan both for retiring employees who 

receive or will receive employees’ benefits. The company has set up trust 

funds for the retirement plans.

These defined contribution pension plan, defined benefit plan with a 

lump-sum payment, and corporate pension plan (Contract-type) for retir-

ing employees who receive or will receive employees’ benefits have been 

created by rearranging the former corporate pension plan (Fund-type), 

defined benefit plan with a lump-sum payment, and tax-qualified pension 

plan on April 1, 2008.

The domestic consolidated subsidiaries of the Company provide defined 

benefit plans with lump-sum payments for retiring employees and one 

of them provides a tax-qualified pension plan. The consolidated foreign 

subsidiaries of the Company provide defined contribution pension plans.

(b) Reserve for Retirement Benefits
Reserve for retirement benefits as of March 31, 2009 and 2008 consists of 

the following:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Retirement benefit obligations ¥(71,490) ¥(131,312) $(727,783)

Plan assets 44,480 91,496 452,817 

Unfunded portion of retirement benefit 
 obligations (27,009) (39,815) (274,966)

Unrecognized prior service cost (2,658) (3,358) (27,059)

Unrecognized actuarial difference 9,554 6,762 97,271 

Net amount of retirement benefit 
 obligation on the Consolidated 
 Balance Sheets (20,113) (36,411) (204,754)

Prepaid pension cost 1,894 — 19,285 

Reserve for retirement benefits ¥(22,007) ¥ (36,411) $(224,040)

*  Domestic consolidated subsidiaries adopt a simplif ied method in calculating their retirement 

benefit obligations.

The effects of the partial transfer of the defined benefit pension plans to 

the defined contribution pension plans are as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2009

Change in retirement benefit liabilities ¥(57,794) $(588,354) 

Change in pension assets 40,429 411,575 

Change in reserve for retirement benefits ¥(17,364) $(176,778) 

The amount of assets that should be transferred from the defined benefit 

plan with a lump-sum payment to the defined contribution pension plan 

is ¥17,364 million, which is planned to be transferred over four years. The 

remaining transfer amount as of the end of the current consolidated busi-

ness year, ¥12,292 million is included in other liabilities.

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2007 2009

Service cost ¥2,060 ¥5,175 ¥5,147 $20,980 

Interest expense 1,315 2,452 2,413 13,396 

Expected investment income (408) (1,338) (1,228) (4,159)

Amortization of prior service cost (700) (1,510) (932) (7,130)

Amortization of actuarial difference 730 2,437 2,706 7,434 

Sub-total 2,998 7,217 8,106 30,520 

Amount contributed to the defined 
 contribution pension plan 2,127 — — 21,658 

Loss resulting from partial termina-
 tion of the retirement benefit plans — 1,085 — —

 Total ¥5,125 ¥8,302 ¥8,106 $52,179 

*  Service cost includes expense for retirement benefit of consolidated subsidiaries under the 

simplif ied method.

(c)  Basis for Calculation of Retirement Benefit Obligations as 
of March 31, 2009 and 2008

The estimated retirement benefits are allocated equally to each service year 

based on the total service years and vested benefit points. The expected 

earnings ratio on investments during the year ended March 31, 2009 and 

2008 is between 0.0% and 1.5%, and between 0.0% and 2.0%, respec-

tively. The discount rates for the years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 are 

1.8%. Both prior service cost and actuarial difference are amortized over 

10 years. 

12. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FIXED ASSETS
The fixed assets of the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiar-

ies used in the insurance business operations, etc. are grouped together 

as a single fixed asset group, and leased properties and idle properties are 

grouped as individual properties.

Impairment losses on fixed assets for the year ended March 31, 2009 and 

2008 are as follows:

March 31, 2009 Millions of Yen

Use Category District

Impairment losses 

Land Building Others Total

Leased 
properties

Land and 
buildings

4 properties,  including 
property in Tokyo ¥  1 ¥121 ¥95 ¥218

Idle 
properties

Land and 
buildings

13 properties,  includ-
ing property in Fukui 210 60 — 270 

 Total ¥211 ¥181 ¥95 ¥489

March 31, 2009 Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 2)

Use Category District

Impairment losses 

Land Building Others Total

Leased 
properties

Land and 
buildings

4 properties,  including 
property in Tokyo $   19 $1,234 $970 $2,224

Idle 
properties

Land and 
buildings

13 properties,  includ-
ing property in Fukui 2,138 615 — 2,753 

 Total $2,157 $1,850 $970 $4,978
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The book values of the properties listed above, the profitability of which 

has decreased significantly due to falling land prices and other reasons 

were impaired to the recoverable amount. The amount of the resulting 

decrease has been accumulated within special loss from impairment losses 

on fixed assets amounting to ¥489 million ($4,978 thousand). The recov-

erable amount is measured as the net sales value. The net sales value is 

measured by real estate appraisers.

March 31, 2008 Millions of Yen

Use Category District

Impairment losses 

Land Building Total

Leased 
properties

Land and 
buildings

4 properties,  including 
property in Aichi ¥ 21 ¥ 38 ¥ 60

Idle 
properties

Land and 
buildings

5 properties,  including 
property in Hokkaido 348 121 470 

 Total ¥369 ¥160 ¥530

The book values of the properties listed above, the profitability of which 

has decreased significantly due to falling land prices and other reasons 

were impaired to the recoverable amount. The amount of the resulting 

decrease has been accumulated within special loss from impairment losses 

on fixed assets amounting to ¥530 million. The recoverable amount is 

measured as the net sales value. The net sales value is measured by real 

estate appraisers.

13.  THE TYPE AND TOTAL NUMBER OF OUTSTANDING 

SHARES, AND THE TYPE AND NUMBER OF 

TREASURY STOCK
Thousands of shares

Previous
 fiscal 

year-end

Increase 
during 

the current 
period

Decrease dur-
ing

 the current 
period

Current 
fiscal 

year-end

Outstanding shares:

 Common stock 816,743 — — 816,743

  Total 816,743 — — 816,743

Treasury stock:

 Common stock 54,517 10,092 271 64,339

  Total 54,517 10,092 271 64,339

*  Increase of 10,092 thousand shares in the number of treasury stock of common stock is 

due to the acquisition of 10,000 thousand shares based on the resolution by the Board of 

Directors on September 19, 2008 and the increase of 92 thousand shares resulting from 

purchases of fractional shares.

**  Decrease of 271 thousand shares in the number of treasury stock of common stock is due 

to the decrease of 250 thousand shares resulting from the exercise of subscription rights to 

shares and the decrease of 21 thousand shares resulting from sales of fractional shares.

14.  SUBSCRIPTION RIGHTS TO SHARES 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of U.S. 
Dollars (Note 2)

Category
Detail of subscription 

rights to shares

Outstanding bal-
ance at 

the current
 fiscal year-end 

Outstanding bal-
ance at 

the current
 fiscal year-end 

Filing company
  (parent company)

Subscription rights to
shares as stock options ¥458 $4,671

  Total ¥458 $4,671

15. STOCK OPTIONS
1)  Stock option expenses in “Operating and administrative expenses” dur-

ing the years ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were ¥196 million 

($2,001 thousand), ¥194 million and ¥268 million, respectively.

2)  Profit resulting from expiration of the exercise period during the year 

ended March 31, 2009 is ¥36 million ($366 thousand).

3) Terms of Stock Options

Grant date

Grantee 
categories 

and numbers of 
grantees

Number of 
stock options 

(number of 
shares)*

Fair
value** Exercise period

March 15, 
2005

9 directors of 
the Company

21 executive 
officers of the 
Company

395,000 
shares of 
common 
stock

— (a)   Exercise date can be anytime 
between 1 year and 7 years 
after retirement, but in all 
cases must be prior to June 
29, 2024.

(b)  Regardless of (a), stock option 
holders with exercise dates 
after June 30, 2023 can exer-
cise any option anytime after 
July 1, 2023.

March 15, 
2006

10 directors of 
the Company

21 executive 
officers of the 
Company

387,000 
shares of 
common 
stock

— (a)  Exercise date can be anytime 
between 1 year and 7 years 
after retirement, but in all 
cases must be prior to June 
29, 2025.

(b)  Regardless of (a), stock option 
holders with exercise dates 
after June 30, 2024 can exer-
cise any option anytime after 
July 1, 2024.

March 27, 
2007

10 directors of 
the Company

21 executive 
officers of the 
Company

288,000 
shares of 
common 
stock

¥934 From March 28, 2007 to March 
27, 2027
(exercisable within 10 days after 
retirement)

March 17, 
2008

8 directors of 
the Company

21 executive 
officers of the 
Company

276,000 
shares of 
common 
stock

¥703 From March 18, 2008 to March 
17, 2028
(exercisable within 10 days after 
retirement)

March 16, 
2009

6 directors of 
the Company

20 executive 
officers of the 
Company

371,000 
shares of 
common 
stock

¥530 From March 17, 2009 to March 
16, 2029 
(exercisable within 10 days after 
retirement)

* The number is shown converting into applicable number of shares.  

** Fair value per stock option at the grant date.

*** The exercise price is ¥1 per share.

****  During the year ended March 31, 2009, options over 250 thousand shares were exercised.

During the year ended March 31, 2008, options over 142 thousand shares were exercised.
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4) Estimation Methods for Stock Option Fair Value

Estimation methods for stock option fair value granted during the current 

period are as follows:

(a) Valuation method used: Black-Scholes model

(b) Assumptions and estimation methods utilized:
2008 Stock Options

Volatility* 50.12%

Expected remaining period** 3 years

Expected dividend*** 7.5 yen per share

Risk-free interest rate**** 0.54%

*  Calculated based on the real performance of the share price for the past three years 

(March 17, 2006 through March 16, 2009).

** Estimated based on past service results.

*** Based on actual dividends for the f iscal year ended March 31, 2008.

**** Yield of government bonds corresponding to the expected remaining period.

2007 Stock Options

Volatility* 33.99%

Expected remaining period** 3 years

Expected dividend*** 7.5 yen per share

Risk-free interest rate**** 0.61%

*  Calculated based on the real performance of the share price for the past three years 

(March 18, 2005 through March 17, 2008).

** Estimated based on past service results.

*** Based on actual dividends for the f iscal year ended March 31, 2007.

**** Yield of government bonds corresponding to the expected remaining period.

5) Estimation Methods for the Number of Stock Options Vested

Estimated based on the past record.

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2009 and 2008 consist of 

the following: 

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Items on the consolidated balance 
sheets:

 Cash and bank deposits ¥  113,074 ¥  104,768 $ 1,151,120 

 Call loans 16,043 46,000 163,320 

  Receivables under resale 
 agreement 29,996 5,997 305,369 

 Monetary receivables bought 41,300 23,983 420,450 

 Investments in securities 2,134,547 2,536,140 21,730,102 

Less:

  Bank deposits with original 
 maturity longer than 3 months (23,585) (23,940) (240,107)

  Monetary receivables bought 
 other than cash equivalents (10,303) (17,983) (104,888)

  Securities other than  cash 
 equivalents (2,132,547) (2,534,140) (21,709,742)

Cash and cash equivalents ¥  168,525 ¥  140,825 $ 1,715,625 

17. PER SHARE INFORMATION
1) Net assets per share

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Net assets per share ¥458.09 ¥711.58 $4.663 

Computational elements are as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Total net assets ¥345,467 ¥543,198 $3,516,921 

Deduction from total net assets 793 807 8,073 

  Of which, subscription rights to 
 shares 458 408 4,671 

 Of which, minority interests 334 398 3,401 

Net assets at year-end attributable to
 common stock ¥344,674 ¥542,391 $3,508,848 

Thousands of shares

2009 2008

Number of shares of common stock at year-end
 used for calculation of net assets per share 752,404 762,225

2) Basic net income per share
(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Basic net income per share ¥13.15 ¥11.63 $0.133 

Computational elements are as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Net income ¥9,971 ¥8,991 $101,507 

Net income not attributable to 
 common shareholders — — —

Net income attributable to 
 common stock ¥9,971 ¥8,991 $101,507 

Thousands of shares

2009 2008

Weighted average number of shares of outstanding 
 common stock 757,928 772,714

3) Diluted net income per share

Computational elements are as follows:
(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

Diluted net income per share ¥13.13 ¥11.62 $0.133 

Computational elements are as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

2009 2008 2009

  Net income—diluted net income — — — 

Thousands of shares

2009 2008

Increase in number of shares of common stock 999 921

 Of which, subscription rights to shares 999 921

* There are no potential shares excluded from the calculation of diluted net income per share 

since there is no dilution effect.
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19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The appropriation of retained earnings of the Company including cash 

dividends in respect of the year ended March 31, 2009 was approved at 

the shareholders’ meeting held on June 25, 2009 as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(Note 2)

Retained earnings at March 31, 2009* ¥131,302 $1,336,682 

Appropriations:

 Cash dividends  (¥8.00–$0.08) 6,019 $ 61,276 

 Transfer to legal reserve* 1,203 12,255 

Retained earnings to be carried forward ¥124,079 $1,263,150 

*  The Company set aside a legal reserve of ¥36,947 million ($376,131 thousand) as of March 31, 

2009, which is not shown in the consolidated balance sheets.

18. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 2)

March 31, 2009
Non-life 

insurance
Life 

insurance Total Elimination Consolidated
Non-life 

insurance
Life 

insurance Total Elimination Consolidated

I  Operating income and expenses

 Operating income

 (a)  Transactions with external 
customers ¥  906,700 ¥ 27,085 ¥  933,786 — ¥  933,786 $ 9,230,387 $  275,739 $ 9,506,127 — $ 9,506,127

 (b)  Intercompany transactions 118 23 141 ¥(141) — 1,202 236 1,438 $(1,438) —

  Total 906,819 27,109 933,928 (141) 933,786 9,231,589 275,976 9,507,565 (1,438) 9,506,127

 Operating expenses 909,046 27,925 936,971 (141) 936,829 9,254,260 284,284 9,538,544 (1,438) 9,537,106

 Ordinary profit (loss) (2,226) (816) (3,043) — (3,043) (22,670) (8,308) (30,978) — (30,978)

II  Assets, depreciation, impairment 
losses and capital investment

 Assets 2,660,605 429,022 3,089,627 (103) 3,089,523 27,085,464 4,367,526 31,452,990 (1 ,052) 31,451,938

 Depreciation 6,917 89 7,007 — 7,007 70,426 909 71,335 — 71,335

 Impairment losses 489 — 489 — 489 4,978 — 4,978 — 4,978

 Capital investment 8,637 111 8,749 — 8,749 87,934 1,133 89,067 — 89,067

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2008
Non-life 

insurance
Life 

insurance Total Elimination Consolidated

I  Operating income and expenses

 Operating income

 (a)  Transactions with external 
customers ¥  939,134 ¥ 27,485 ¥  966,620 — ¥  966,620

 (b)  Intercompany transactions 117 25 142 ¥(142) —

  Total 939,252 27,510 966,763 (142) 966,620

 Operating expenses 921,637 27,383 949,020 (142) 948,878

 Ordinary profit (loss)    17,615     127    17,742 —    17,742

II  Assets, depreciation, impairment 
losses and capital investment

 Assets 2,968,269 355,015 3,323,285   (94) 3,323,190

 Depreciation 6,881 82 6,963 — 6,963

 Impairment losses 530 — 530 — 530

 Capital investment 8,890 45 8,935 — 8,935

* The segments are classif ied by the actual business operations of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries.

**  Major business of each segment is as follows; 

Non-life insurance: Underwriting non-life insurance and related investment activities 

Life insurance: Underwriting life insurance and related investment activities

Information related to geographical segments and overseas sales segments are omitted because these are immaterial.
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Referential Information (UNAUDITED)

The following segment information indicates the figures before eliminating intercompany balances and transactions between “Non-life insurance” and 

“Life insurance.”

1. Non-life insurance
(1) Underwriting

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars*1

Direct premiums written 2009 2008 2009

Fire and allied lines ¥147,093 ¥146,902 $1,497,436 
Marine 19,746 23,320 201,022 
Personal accident 63,771 89,067 649,203 
Voluntary automobile 339,259 344,640 3,453,721 
Compulsory automobile liability 82,384 99,471 838,691 
Other*2 88,613 89,175 902,098 

 Total ¥740,867 ¥792,577 $7,542,173 

 Deposit premiums included in Total 42,425 66,689 431,896 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars*1

Net premiums written 2009 2008 2009

Fire and allied lines ¥  96,063 ¥  96,104 $   977,941 
Marine 17,786 20,853 181,065 
Personal accident 52,918 56,374 538,721 
Voluntary automobile 333,734 338,620 3,397,475 
Compulsory automobile liability 81,099 102,986 825,605 
Other*2 82,287 83,746 837,698 

 Total ¥663,888 ¥698,685 $6,758,507 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars*1

Net losses paid 2009 2008 2009

Fire and allied lines ¥  42,054 ¥  42,950 $   428,123 
Marine 7,308 8,542 74,405 
Personal accident 32,397 31,246 329,815 
Voluntary automobile 203,299 211,738 2,069,626 
Compulsory automobile liability 73,767 75,208 750,967 
Other*2 47,406 50,282 482,607 

 Total ¥406,234 ¥419,969 $4,135,546 
* 1:  U.S. dollar amounts are translated from yen at the rate of ¥98.23=US$1, the approximate rate prevailing at March 31, 2009.
* 2:  Of which, major lines of insurance are Liability, Transit, Movables all risks and Workers’ compensation.
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(2) Investments

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars*

Investment assets 2009 2008 2009

Bank deposits ¥   100,910 ¥     94,731 $  1,027,285 

Call loans 15,000 46,000 152,702 

Receivables under resale agreements 29,996 5,997 305,369 

Monetary receivables bought 41,300 23,983 420,450 

Money in trust 38,547 45,574 392,422 

Investments in securities 1,838,383 2,273,245 18,715,087 

Loans 229,695 214,837 2,338,344 

Land and buildings 117,074 118,759 1,191,841 

 Total 2,410,908 2,823,130 24,543,504 

 Total assets ¥2,685,605 ¥2,993,269 $27,339,969 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars*

Investments in securities 2009 2008 2009

Domestic securities:

 Government bonds ¥   465,858 ¥   584,916 $  4,742,524 
 Municipal bonds 61,731 74,446 628,433 
 Corporate bonds 356,457 366,672 3,628,806 
 Stocks 579,539 836,940 5,899,825 
Foreign securities 349,982 377,970 3,562,890 
Other securities 24,813 32,299 252,607 
 Total ¥1,838,383 ¥2,273,245 $18,715,087 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars*

2009 2008 2009

Investment income
Earned
income

Average
 invested
amounts

Yield
 per

 annum
Earned
income

Average
 invested
amounts

Yield
 per

 annum
Earned
income

Bank deposits ¥     339 ¥     88,490 0.38% ¥     577 ¥     89,282 0.65% $    3,460 
Call loans 84 23,114 0.36 123 25,204 0.49 858 
Receivables under resale agreements 49 9,509 0.52 53 9,375 0.57 502 
Monetary receivables bought 327 40,312 0.81 382 38,651 0.99 3,338 
Money in trust 659 43,829 1.51 783 45,838 1.71 6,715 
Investments in securities 43,688 1,794,390 2.43 45,387 1,886,086 2.41 444,761 
Loans 4,741 220,419 2.15 4,748 228,813 2.08 48,270 
Lands and buildings 1,753 119,096 1.47 1,841 121,614 1.15 17,850 
 Sub-total 51,645 2,339,161 2.21 53,897 2,444,866 2.20 525,757 
Other 560 — — 534 — — 5,701 
 Total ¥52,205 — — ¥54,431 — — $531,458 
* U.S. dollar amounts are translated from yen at the rate of ¥98.23=US$1, the approximate rate prevailing at March 31, 2009.    
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2. Life insurance
(1) Underwriting

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars*

2009 2008 2009

Amount of business in force:
 Individual insurance ¥3,809,387 ¥3,634,793 $38,780,287 
 Individual annuity insurance 204,720 212,407 2,084,090 
 Group insurance 1,005,352 1,014,416 10,234,679 

Amount of new business:
 Individual insurance ¥   595,018 ¥   606,733 $  6,057,401 
 Individual annuity insurance 6,751 7,951 68,736 
 Group insurance 28,307 43,882 288,171 

(2) Investments

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars*

Investment assets 2009 2008 2009

Bank deposits ¥  12,102 ¥  9,947 $   123,210 
Call loans 1,043 — 10,617 
Receivables under securities borrowing transactions 32,127 — 327,066 
Money in trust 36,296 37,087 369,503 
Investments in securities 321,164 287,895 3,269,519 
Loans 12,519 10,676 127,451 
Lands and buildings 11 13 113 
  Total 415,265 345,620 4,227,482 
  Total assets ¥429,022 ¥355,015 $4,367,526 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars*

Investments in securities 2009 2008 2009

Domestic securities:

 Government bonds ¥210,615 ¥186,759 $2,144,108 
 Municipal bonds 46,363 26,008 471,986 
 Corporate bonds 58,405 67,608 594,575 
 Stocks 4,841 6,542 49,291 
Foreign securities 938 977 9,557 
  Total ¥321,164 ¥287,895 $3,269,519 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars*

2009 2008 2009

Investment income
Earned
income

Average
invested
amounts

Yield
per

 annum
Earned
income

Average
invested
amounts

Yield
per

 annum
Earned
income

Bank deposits ¥   0 ¥    9,439 0.00% — ¥   9,252 — $    0 
Call loans 1 675 0.26 — — — 17 
Receivables under securities borrowing transactions 129 30,918 0.42 ¥       4 888 0.55% 1,319 
Monetary receivables bought — — — 0 27 0.58 —
Money in trust 665 37,000 1.80 651 35,638 1.83 6,771 
Investments in securities 6,569 300,012 2.19 5,805 261,778 2.22 66,879 
Loans 350 11,575 3.03 291 9,631 3.03 3,572 
Lands and buildings — 13 — — 14 — — 
  Total ¥7,716 ¥389,633 1.98% ¥6,753 ¥317,231 2.13% $78,560 
* U.S. dollar amounts are translated from yen at the rate of ¥98.23=US$1, the approximate rate  prevailing at March 31, 2009.
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REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES 

Europe

London

1st Floor, John Stow House,
18 Bevis Marks,
London EC3A 7JB, U.K.
Tel : 44-20-7648-9930
Fax : 44-20-7929-6223
Tel : 44-20-7488-9899
Fax : 44-20-7488-9684

Düsseldorf

Cantadorstr. 3,
40211 Düsseldorf, Germany
Tel : 49-211-178670
Fax : 49-211-162266

Brussels

Place de l’Alma 3, Bte-4,
1200 Brussels, Belgium
Tel : 32-2-779-2446
Fax : 32-2-771-7169

Paris

10, rue de Milan, 
75009 Paris, France
Tel : 33-1-44 53 00 11
Fax : 33-1-44 53 00 22

Moscow

Millennium House, Offi ce “G” (4F)
Trubnaya St. 12 Moscow 107045, 
Russia
Tel : 7-495-787-2796
Fax : 7-495-787-2792

North America

New York

14 Wall Street, Suite 812,
New York, NY 10005, U.S.A.
Tel : 1-212-405-1650
Fax : 1-212-405-1660

Los Angeles

601 South Figueroa Street, 
Suite 2100,
Los Angeles, CA 90017, U.S.A.
Tel : 1-213-833-2100
Fax : 1-213-833-2120

Chicago

180 North LaSalle Street, 
Suite 2503,
Chicago, IL 60601 U.S.A.
Tel : 1-312-553-9344
Fax : 1-312-553-9347

Toronto

Suite 200, P.O. Box #5, 
20 Queen Street, West, 
Toronto, Ontario M5H3R3,
Canada
Tel : 1-416-601-2543
Fax : 1-416-601-4432

Asia & Oceania

Beijing

Room 1001A, Fortune Building 10/F,
Dongsanhuan Beilu, Chaoyang 
District, Beijing 100004,
People’s Republic of China
Tel : 86-10-6590-9500
Fax : 86-10-6590-9502

Shanghai

Room 2502, Shanghai International
Trade Center, 2201 Yanan Road (w.),
Shanghai 200335,
People’s Republic of China
Tel : 86-21-6275-4574
Fax : 86-21-6275-4075

Shenzhen

Room 511, Fujian Industrial Bank 
Building, No. 4013 Mintian Road, 
Futian District, Shenzhen, 
People’s Republic of China
Tel : 86-755-2518-0500
Fax : 86-755-8236-1274

Suzhou

Unit 05 15F, International Building, 
No. 2 Suhua Road, Suzhou, 215021,
People’s Republic of China  
Tel : 86-512-6824-0545
Fax : 86-512-6824-3348

Qingdao

Room 609, Crowne Plaza Qingdao, 
76 Xiang Gang Zhong Lu, 
Qingdao 266071,
People’s Republic of China  
Tel : 86-532-8573-5910
Fax : 86-532-8575-5302

Dalian

9F, Senmao Building 147, 
Zhongshan Lu, Dalian 116011, 
People’s Republic of China  
Tel : 86-411-8360-9142
Fax : 86-411-8360-9702

Hong Kong

19th Floor, Tai Tung Building,
8 Fleming Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong
Tel : 852-2524-0036
Fax : 852-2868-4413

Taipei

Room 1403, No. 205, Sec. 1, 
Tun-Hwa S. Road, Taipei, 
Taiwan R.O.C.
Tel : 886-2-2776-6484
Fax : 886-2-2772-5456

Manila

c/o Pioneer Insurance & Surety
Corporation, 7th Floor, Pioneer
House, 108 Paseo de Roxas, 
Makati City, Philippines
Tel : 63-2-841-0267
Fax : 63-2-841-0269

Hanoi

c/o BAOVIET, Insurance
2nd Floor., 35 Hai Ba Trung,
Hanoi, S.R. Vietnam

Ho Chi Minh City

Me Linh Point Tower 6th Floor, 
Unit 602, 2 Ngo Duc Ke, District 1, 
Ho Chi Minh City, S.R. Vietnam
Tel : 84-8-3825-0364
Fax : 84-8-3827-2335

Bangkok

Unit 1905, 2/4 Siam Commercial 
Samaggi Insurance Tower, 15th Floor, 
Northpark Project, Vibhavadi-Rangsit 
Road, Thungsonghong, Laksi,
Bangkok 10210, Thailand
Tel : 66-2-955-0137
Fax : 66-2-955-0139

OVERSEAS GROUP Network
As of July 1, 2009
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Kuala Lumpur

Lonpac Insurance Bhd 
“NIPPONKOA Division,” 7th Floor, 
Bangunan Public Bank, No. 6, Jalan 
Sultan Sulaiman, 50000 
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Tel : 60-3-2723-7772
Fax: 60-3-2715-0697

Singapore

36 Robinson Road #11-01 City House, 
Singapore 068877, 
Republic of Singapore
Tel : 65-6222-6001
Fax : 65-6222-2557

New Delhi

106, Durga Chambers,
1335, D.B. Gupta Road,
Karol Bagh,
Delhi-110005, India

Jakarta

c/o PT. Asuransi Permata Nipponkoa 
Indonesia, Permata Bank Tower I, 
8th Floor, Jl. Jend, Sudirman Kav. 27, 
Jakarta 12920, 
P.O. Box 3129, Indonesia
Tel : 62-21-5237500
Fax : 62-21-5237506

Sydney

c/o CGU Insurance Limited, 
Level 7, IAG Building 388, 
George Street, Sydney N.S.W. 2000, 
Australia 
G.P.O. Box 244
Tel : 61-2-8224-4194
Fax : 61-2-9222-2981

SUBSIDIARIES & AFFILIATES

United Kingdom

NIPPONKOA Insurance Company 
(Europe) Limited

1st Floor, John Stow House,
18 Bevis Marks,
London EC3A 7JB, U.K.
Tel : 44-20-7648-9930
Fax : 44-20-7929-6223

Nippon Insurance Company of
Europe Limited

1st Floor, John Stow House,
18 Bevis Marks,
London EC3A 7JB, U.K.
Tel : 44-20-7648-9930
Fax : 44-20-7929-6223

NIPPONKOA Management Services 
(Europe) Limited 

1st Floor, John Stow House,
18 Bevis Marks,
London EC3A 7JB, U.K.
Tel : 44-20-7648-9930
Fax : 44-20-7929-6223

U.S.A.

NIPPONKOA Management
Corporation

14 Wall Street, Suite 812,
New York, NY 10005, U.S.A.
Tel : 1-212-405-1650
Fax : 1-212-405-1660

China

NIPPONKOA Insurance Company 
(China) Limited

No.903–904, Kerry Plaza Tower 2,
No.1 Zhong Xin Si Road
Futian District, Shenzhen 518048,
People’s Republic of China
Tel : 86-755-8256-0055
Fax : 86-755-8256-0198

NIPPONKOA Insurance Company 
(Asia) Limited

19th Floor, Tai Tung Building,
8 Fleming Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong S.A.R., 
People’s Republic of China
Tel : 852-2524-0036
Fax : 852-2868-4413

Singapore

NIPPONKOA Management Service 
(Singapore) Private Limited

36 Robinson Road #11-01 City House, 
Singapore 068877, 
Republic of Singapore
Tel : 65-6222-6001
Fax : 65-6222-2557

Indonesia

PT Asuransi Permata Nipponkoa 
Indonesia

Permata Bank Tower I, 8th Floor, 
Jl. Jend. Sudirman Kav. 27, Jakarta 
12920, P.O. Box 3129, Indonesia
Tel : 62-21-5237500
Fax : 62-21-5237506

Thailand

NIPPONKOA Insurance Broker 
(Thailand) Company Limited

Unit 1905 2/4 Siam Commercial 
Samaggi Insurance Tower, 15th Floor, 
Northpark Project, Vibhavadi-Rangsit 
Road, Thungsonghong, Laksi,
Bangkok 10210, Thailand
Tel : 66-2-955-0137
Fax : 66-2-955-0139

OVERSEAS UNDERWRITING AGENCIES

U.S.A.

The Travelers Marine Corporation

Guam (U.S.A.)

Nanbo Guam, Ltd.

Canada

St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance 
Company, Canada

Singapore

NIPPONKOA Management Service 
(Singapore) Private Limited

Australia

CGU Insurance Limited 
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Organization CHART 
As of July 1, 2009

 Investment Headquarters

Quality Control Dept.

Corporate Planning Dept.

  Affi liated Affairs

  Corporate Research & Development

  IR

  Revenue Management & CSR 

  Business Integration Planning Offi ce

Risk Management Dept.

  Actuarial Offi ce

Compliance Dept.

  Research & Planning

Public Relations Dept.

General Affairs Dept.

Human Resources Dept.

  Human Development

Accounting Dept.

Information Technology Planning Dept.

Information Systems Dept.

Develop Management

Marketing Planning Dept.

  Sales Network Planning

  CR

Sales Promotion Dept.

  Motors-Channels Promotion

  Financial Development

  Financial Affairs

  Agency Management

  Fiduciary Promotion

Agency Development Dept.

Logistics-Channels Promotion Dept.

  Logistics Sales

  Business Affairs 

Business Process Reengineering Dept.

  Credit Control Offi ce

Personal Lines Insurance Dept.

  Fire Insurance

  Automobile Insurance

  Medical Insurance Offi ce

Commercial Lines Underwriting Dept.

  Marine Underwriting Offi ce

Reinsurance Dept.

Claims Management Dept.

Claims Payment Management Dept.

International Dept.

  China Business Planning

Investment Dept.

Corporate Finance Dept.

Customers Supporting Offi ce

Hokkaido Compliance Offi ce

Tohoku Compliance Offi ce

Kanto Compliance Offi ce

Kanetsu Compliance Offi ce

Metropolitan Compliance Offi ce

Chubu Compliance Offi ce

Kansai Compliance Offi ce

Chugoku, Shikoku Compliance Offi ce

Kyushu Compliance Offi ce

Commercial Account Compliance Offi ce

Hokkaido Regional

Headquarters 4 branches

Tohoku Regional

Headquarters 6 branches

Kanto Regional

Headquarters 6 branches

Kanetsu Regional

Headquarters 4 branches

Metropolitan Regional

Headquarters 10 branches

Yokohama Bayside Branch

Chubu Regional

Headquarters 11 branches

Kansai Regional

Headquarters 13 branches

Chugoku, Shikoku Regional

Headquarters 7 branches

Kyushu Regional

Headquarters 7 branches

Motors Account

Marketing Headquarters 4 branches

6 Commercial Account Marketing Dept.

(I –V /Cargo, Property & Casualty)

Government & Public Account Marketing 

Dept.

Commercial Account Claims Dept.

  Fire & Casualty Claims Offi ce

  Marine Claims Offi ce

Mortgage Administration Dept. 

General Meeting of 
Shareholders

Chief ActuaryBoard of Corporate Auditors

Auditors

Auditors‘ Office

Management Committee

Internal Audit Dept.

Board of Directors
Chief Executive Officer

Corporate Officers in Charge of 
Head Office Functions
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Board of Directors

Makoto Hyodo*
Masaya Futamiya*
Kazuo Hashimoto
Yasuhide Fujii
Takayuki Naito
Yuichi Yamaguchi
Kazufumi Yunome

*Representative Director

Independent Directors

Masahiko Okabe
Yoji Wakui
Junichiro Sano
Tatsuya Tamura

Corporate Auditors

Atau Kadokawa
Kenji Ito

Independent Corporate 

Auditors

Kozue Shiga
Katsuro Ohishi
Sumitaka Fujita

Corporate Offi cers

President and Chief 
Executive Offi cer

Makoto Hyodo

Senior Managing 
Executive Offi cers

Tetsuo Shinohara
Masaya Futamiya

Managing Executive 
Offi cers

Yasuo Watabe
Teizou Suzuki
Akinobu Yoshimori
Tetsuya Yamada
Yasuhide Fujii
Takayuki Naito
Yuichi Yamaguchi
Toshihiko Miyasaka
Kazufumi Yunome
Takaaki Sakai

Executive Offi cers

Shunsuke Onoda
Koji Yamamoto 
Takeo Seko
Hiroji Sanpei
Jun Kimura
Takaya Isogai
Akira Yamami
Osamu Sasaki
Yoshitaka Anziki
Tatsuhiko Ushigome
Koichi Tanida
Eiichi Saito

Directors AND OFFICERS
As of June 25, 2009

CORPORATE Data
As of April 1, 2009

Head Offi ce

3-7-3 Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku, 
Tokyo 100-8965, Japan
Tel: +81-3-3593-3111
Fax:  International Dept. +81-3-3593-5159

Reinsurance Dept. +81-3-3593-5150
Marine Claims Management Dept. +81-3-3231-3526
Public Relations Dept. +81-3-3593-5388
IR +81-3-3593-5383

URL: http://www.nipponkoa.co.jp/ 

Established

1892

Capital

¥91,249 million

Offi ces 

Domestic: 249 
Overseas: 26

Claims Handling Offi ces 

183

Employees  (As of March 31, 2009)

8,608

Agents (As of March 31, 2009)

Domestic: 29,852
Overseas: 5

Number of Shares of Common Stock

Authorized 1,500,000,000 shares
Issued 816,743,118 shares

Stock Exchange Listings 

Tokyo, Osaka, Nagoya

General Meeting of Shareholders

The General Meeting of Shareholders is to be held with-
in four months of April 1 each year. The latest Annual 
General Meeting of Shareholders was held on June 25, 
2009 

Transfer Agent

Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation
4-5, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku,
Tokyo 100-8212, Japan



This annual report was printed in Japan. E7-19-0104

3-7-3 Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8965, Japan

Tel: +81-3-3593-3111 URL: http://www.nipponkoa.co.jp/
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